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Registered Office : Bhandari Plaza,2nd Floor, Opp Nagar Parishad Rajendra Marg Road, 

Bhilwara -311001 (Rajasthan) 
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 Website: www.vandanaknitwear.com 

 

NOTICE 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 30TH Annual General Meeting of the Members of ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) will be held on Monday, 29th September, 2025 at 03:30 P.M. 
through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) for transacting following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
1. Adoption of Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2025. 

 
To adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 
together with the Board's and Auditors' Reports thereon. 
 
To consider, and if thought fit to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution, as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 129, 134 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or 
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) the Audited financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended 31st March, 2025 together with Board’s and Auditors’ Report thereon, as circulated to the 
members be and are hereby approved and adopted.” 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 
 
2. Re-Appointment Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani (DIN: 00125231) as Chairman and Managing Director. 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution: - 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196,197 & 198, 203 of the Companies Act 2013 
read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any amendment, 
modification, variation or re-enactment thereof), and applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification (s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) and provisions of Articles of Association and all other applicable rules, 
laws and acts, if any, subject to all other requisite approvals, permissions, sanctions, as may be required, 
and subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by any of the concerned authorities, if any, while 
granting such approval as may be applicable and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and  Board of Directors of the Company, approval of the members be and is 
hereby accorded to for Re-Appointment of  Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani (DIN: 00125231) as a chairman and 
Managing Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for the further period of three years 
with effective from 29th March, 2026 on such terms and conditions including remuneration as set out in 
the explanatory statement annexed to the Notice. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in the event of any statutory amendment, modification or relaxation by the 
Central Government to Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any other relevant Statutory 
enactment(s) thereof in this regard, the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorised to vary or 
increase the remuneration including salary, commission, perquisites, allowances etc. within such 

mailto:vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com


ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

      

4 
 

prescribed limit or ceiling and the above referred terms and conditions of re-appointment of Mr. Naresh 
Kumar Gattani, shall be suitably amended to give effect to such modification, relaxation or variation 
without any further reference to the members for their approval.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT that if in any financial year during the currency of tenure of the Managing 
Director, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate the appointee shall be entitled to 
minimum remuneration by way of Basic Salary, Perquisites, allowances not exceeding the limits specified 
under para 1 (A) of Section II, Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to alter or vary the scope of 
remuneration of Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani, Managing Director of the Company including the monetary 
value thereof, to the extent recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to 
time as may be considered appropriate, subject to the overall limits specified by this resolution and the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani (DIN: 00125231) in the capacity of Managing 
Director will be entrusted with among others the powers ,authorities, functions, duties, responsibilities by 
Board of Directors of the Company from time to time.    
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby 
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters, things etc. and take all such steps as may be 
necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.” 
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration personnel) Rules 2014 and applicable provisions if any of 
Companies Act 2013 and Regulations 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) ( Third 
Amendment) Regulations,2024 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force) (as amended), and other rules, guidelines and circulars issued in this regard, from time 
to time and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors , the 
consent of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded to Appoint “M/s R.K. Jain & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries” Bhilwara ( Proprietor Mr. Rajendra Kumar Jain having ICSI Membership No. F4584; 
CP No. 5844;  Peer Review Certificate No. 1361/2021 valid upto 31.07.2026) for first term of consecutive 
five years as Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit commencing from the 
F.Y. 2025-2026, at a remuneration of Rs. 60,000/- (Rs. Sixty Thousand Only), plus applicable taxes and out 
of pocket expenses, if any for the financial year 2025-2026 and for subsequent years on such 
remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon between the Board of Directors of the Company and 
Auditor. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or Company Secretary of the Company be and are 
hereby authorized to do all such acts, matters, deeds and things as may be deemed necessary or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution and for the matters connected therewith or incidental thereto 
and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.” 
 

4. REGULARIZATION OF ADDITIONAL DIRECTOR, MR. SIDDHARTH GATTANI (DIN: 07418858) AS EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY  

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 160 and all other provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, 
[including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force] and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), and other applicable laws Mr. Siddharth Gattani (DIN: 07418858),  who was 
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appointed as an Additional Director under the category of Executive Director in the Board Meeting held on 
30th August,2025, who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and who is eligible for 
appointment and has consented to act as Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for 
the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation. 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani, Managing Director or Ms. Kirti Agarwal, Company 
Secretary be and is hereby authorized to sign and execute the necessary papers, deeds, returns and other 
documents to be filed with the office of the Register of Companies, Jaipur and to do any act, deed, thing, 
matter, connected with the aforesaid matter or any other matter incidental or ancillary thereto. 
 

5. REGULARIZATION OF ADDITIONAL DIRECTOR, MR. SHORYA GATTANI (DIN: 06597345) AS EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY  
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 160 and all other provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, 
[including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force] and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), and other applicable laws , Mr. Shorya Gattani (DIN: 06597345),  who was 
appointed as an Additional Director under the category of Executive Director in the Board Meeting held on 
30th August,2025 who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and who is eligible for 
appointment and has consented to act as Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for 
the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation. 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani Managing Director or Ms. Kirti Agarwal, Company 
Secretary be and is hereby authorized to sign and execute the necessary papers, deeds, returns and other 
documents to be filed with the office of the Register of Companies, Jaipur and to do any act, deed, thing, 
matter, connected with the aforesaid matter or any other matter incidental or ancillary thereto. 

  
 

 
Place: Bhilwara 
Date: 30.08.2025  
 
 
 
Registered Office:  
Bhandari Plaza, 2nd Floor,  
Opp. Nagar Parishad 
Rajendra Marg Road, Bhilwara 
Rajasthan, India, 311001. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
                            For ATVO Enterprises Limited  

(Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited)  
    
 

    Sd/-                                                                              
                                      

                                                      (Kirti Agarwal) 
Company Secretary & Compliance officer  

Membership No. ACS 56426  
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NOTES: 
 

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has vide General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 
and earlier circulars issued in this regard (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars") and SEBI vide 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 3, 2024 and earlier circulars issued 
in this regard (collectively referred to as "SEBI Circulars") allowed the Companies to hold AGM/EGM 
through Video Conference (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) without physical presence of the 
Members at common venue up to 30th September, 2025. In compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 ("Listing Regulations"), MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars the 30th AGM of the Company is being 
held through Video Conference (VC)/Other Audio-Visual Mode (OAVM), without physical presence of the 
Members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the 
Company. 
 

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ("AGM/Meeting") IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND 
THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT 
TO THE MCA AND SEBI CIRCULARS THROUGH VC/OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL 
ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA AND 
SEBI CIRCULARS, THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE 
AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE, THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP AND ROUTE MAP OF 
AGM ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE.  

 

3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 
of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
4. In terms of aforesaid "MCA Circular and SEBI Circulars", the Company is sending this AGM Notice along 

with the Annual Report -2024-25 in electronic form only to those Members whose e-mail addresses are 
registered with the Company/Depositories. Further, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations 
the letter containing web link of Annual Report 2024-25 and AGM Notice along with QR Code to access 
the same are being sent to members who do not have registered E-Mail ID with Company/Depositories. 
The Notice convening the AGM and the Annual Report-2024-25 has been uploaded on the website of the 
Company at www.vandanaknitwear.com and can also be accessed from the relevant section of the 
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited ("BSE") at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also 
available on the website of CDSL at www.evotingindia.com. However, physical copy of Annual Report 
2024-25 will be sent to members on their request at company's mail id 
vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com. 

 
5. Pursuant to Section 102 of the Act, the explanatory statement setting out the material facts concerning 

each item of Special Business to be conducted at the 30th AGM is annexed hereto. Pursuant to regulation 
36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings ("SS-2") issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India ("ICSI") the brief profile and other additional information of 
Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment is annexed hereto. 

 

6. Institutional Investors, who are Members of the Company, are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM 
through VC/OAVM facility. Corporate Members and other non-individual members intending to appoint 
their authorized representatives to attend the AGM through VC or OAVM and to vote thereat through 
remote e-Voting/e-Voting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution/Power of 
Attorney to the Scrutinizer by e-mail at bksharma162@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com or by post to the Company Office No. Bhandari Plaza, 2nd Floor, 
Opp. Nagar Parishad, Rajendra Marg Road, Bhilwara, Rajasthan, 311001 Rajasthan. 

 

7. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will 

be entitled to vote. 
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8. In terms of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, the Resolutions for consideration at this AGM will be transacted through remote e-voting (i.e. 
facility to cast vote prior to the AGM) and also e-voting during the AGM, for which purpose the Board of 
Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) have engaged the services of Central Depository Services Limited 
(‘CDSL’).  The Board has appointed Mr. Brij Kishore Sharma, Proprietor, M/s. B K Sharma & Associates, 
Practising Company Secretary as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the process of e-voting. 

 

9. Remote e-voting will commence at 9.00 A.M. on Friday, 26th September, 2025 and will end at 5.00 P.M. 
on Sunday, 28th September, 2025, when remote e-voting will be blocked by CDSL.  

 
10. Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the Members on 

Monday, 22nd September, 2025 (cut-off date). Only those Members whose names are recorded in the 
Register of Members of the Company or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the 
Depositories as on the cut-off date will be entitled to cast their votes by remote e-voting or e-voting during 
the AGM. Those who are not Members on the cut-off date should accordingly treat this Notice as for 
information purposes only. 

 

11. In conformity with the applicable regulatory requirements, the Notice of this AGM and the Report and 
Accounts 2025 are being sent only through electronic mode to those Members who have registered their 
e-mail addresses with the Company or with the Depositories. 

 

12. Members who hold shares in the certificate form or who have not registered their e-mail addresses with 
the Company or with the Depositories and wish to receive the AGM Notice and the Report and Accounts 
2024, or participate in the AGM, or cast their votes through remote e-voting or e-voting during the 
meeting, are required to register their e-mail addresses with the Company at 
vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com. Alternatively, Members may send a letter requesting for 
registration of their e-mail addresses, mentioning their name and DP ID & Client ID / folio number, through 
e-mail at vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com. Detailed instructions for participating in the AGM and 
for voting are provided hereunder. 

 

13. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions with respect to the agenda items of the 
meeting will be required to register themselves as speaker by sending e-mail to the Executive & Company 
Secretary at vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com from their registered e-mail address, mentioning 
their name, DP ID & Client ID / folio number and mobile number. Only those Members who have 
registered themselves as speaker by 05.00 P.M. on Monday, 22nd September, 2025 will be able to speak 
at the meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of 
speakers, depending upon availability of time, for smooth conduct of the AGM. 

 

14. Further, Members who would like to have their questions / queries responded to during the AGM are 
requested to send such questions / queries in advance within the aforesaid time period. 

 

15. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Act, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall 
remain closed from Tuesday, 23rd day of September, 2025 to Monday, 29th day of September, 2025 (both 
days inclusive)  

 

16. In case of any queries regarding the Annual Report, members may write to 
vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com to receive an email response. Members desiring any 
information relating to the financial statements at the meeting are requested to email to us at least 10 
(Ten) days before the meeting to enable us to keep the information ready. 

 
17. Members are requested to forward all Share Transfers and other communications/ correspondence to the 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) and are further requested to always quote their Folio Number in all 
correspondences with the Company. 

 
18. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify immediately any change in their address 

or bank mandates to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents quoting their Folio Number and Bank Account 
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Details along with self-attested documentary proofs. Members holding shares in the dematerialized form 

may update such details with their respective Depository Participants. 

 
19. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 

Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form 

are therefore requested to submit their respective PAN details to their respective Depository Participant 

with whom they have their demat account(s). Members holding shares in physical form can submit their 

PAN details to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company - M/s MUFG Intime India Private 

Limited. 

 
20. Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform the Company's RTA, immediately of any change in 

their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement, their bank account maintained in 

India with complete name, branch, account type, account number and address of the bank with pin code, 

IFSC and MICR Code, as applicable, if such details were not furnished earlier. 

 
21. The Notice of 30th Annual General Meeting and instructions for e-voting along with Assent / Dissent Form 

are being sent by electronic mode to all members whose email address are registered with the 

Company/Depository Participant(s). 

 
22. Pursuant to the aforesaid Circular issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, shareholders who have not 

registered their email address may temporarily get their email address registered with the Company’s 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s MUFG Intime India Private Limited at www.in.mpms.mufg.com. 

Post successful registration of the email, the shareholder would get soft copy of the notice and the 

procedure for e-voting along with the User ID and Password to enable e-voting at the ensuing AGM. In 

case of any queries, shareholder may write to rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com.     

 
23. The facility for voting shall be made available at the venue of the Annual General Meeting and the 

members attending the meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to 

exercise their right to vote at the Annual General Meeting. The members who have cast their vote by 

remote e-voting prior to the Annual General Meeting may also attend the Annual General Meeting but 

shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 
24. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Act read with the Rules made there under, Members 

holding shares in single name may avail the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them. 

Members holding shares in physical form may avail this facility by sending a nomination in the prescribed 

Form No. SH-13 duly filled to the Registrar and Transfer Agents, M/s. MUFG Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 

Members holding shares in electronic form may contact their respective Depository Participant(s) for 

availing this facility. 

 
25. We request you to send an email on vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com to ensure that the annual 

report and other documents reach you on your preferred e-mail. 

 
26. In terms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, transfer of shares 

can be processed in DEMAT form, transmission and transposition of securities held in physical or DEMAT 

form shall be affected only in dematerialized form. With the aim of curbing fraud and manipulation risk in 

physical transfer of securities, SEBI has notified the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

(Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2018 on June 8, 2018 to permit transfer of listed securities only in the 

dematerialized form with a depository. In view of the above and the inherent benefits of holding shares in 

electronic form, we urge the shareholders holding shares in physical form to opt for dematerialization. 

 

27. Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ CIR/2022/8 

dated January 25, 2022 (subsumed as part of SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/POD-

1/P/CIR/2024/37 dated May 7, 2024) has mandated the listed companies to issue securities in Demat form 
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only while processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; Exchange of securities 

certificate; Endorsement; Sub-division/ Splitting of securities certificate; Consolidation of securities 

certificates/folios; Transmission and Transposition. 

 

28. Members desiring inspection of the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their 

Shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in 

which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act during AGM may send their 

request in writing to the Company at vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com. 
 

29. Members who wish to inspect the relevant documents referred to in the Notice can send an email to 

vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com up to the date of the AGM. 

 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING AGM AND JOINING 
MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

 
(i) The general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No. 
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, MCA Circular No. 
02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, MCA Circular No. 21/2021 dated 14th December, 2021, MCA 
Circular No. 2/2022 dated 5th May, 2022, MCA Circular dated September 25, 2023 and MCA Circular 
dated September 19, 2024. The forthcoming AGM will thus be held through video conferencing (VC) 
or other audio-visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing 
AGM through VC/OAVM. 
 

(ii) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of Listing 
Regulations (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 
the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 
authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well 
as the e-voting system during the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 
 

(iii) The Members can join the AGM through the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the 
Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to 1000 
members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders 
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors, Scrutinizers etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM 
without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 
 

(iv) Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend 
and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 
and Section 113 of the Act, representatives of the members such as the President of India or the 
Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes 
through e-voting. 

 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:  
 

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders 
holding shares in demat mode.  
Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode 
and non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 

mailto:vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com
mailto:vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com
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(i)  The voting period begins on Friday, 26th September, 2025 at 09:00 A.M.(IST) and ends on Sunday, 28th 

September, 2025 at 05:00 P.M.(IST) During this period, shareholders of the Company, holding shares 
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 22nd 
September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for 
voting thereafter. 

 
(ii)            Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date through e-voting system would not be 

entitled to vote at the meeting venue, however, they shall be entitled to attend the Meeting. Only those 
shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on 
the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible 
to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

 

(iii)          Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 
44 of the Listing Regulations listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its 
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. Currently, there are multiple e-voting service 
providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on 
various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has 
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login 
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. 
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the 
ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience 
of participating in e-voting process. 

 
Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders 
holding shares in demat mode.  

 
 

(iv)          In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order 
to access e-Voting facility. 

 
Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode are given below: 

 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholder
s holding 
securities in 
Demat 
mode with 
CDSL 
Depository 

1) Users of who have opted for CDSL’s Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The URLs for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com 
and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi  New (token ) 
Tab. 
 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the 
eVoting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress 
as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there 
is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' 
website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/Easi 
Registration. 

 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page or click on https:// 
evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user 
will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress 
and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers. 

 
Individual 
Shareholder
s holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 
Depository 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on 
a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 
‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 
able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-
directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 
 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 
 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 
 

4) For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 
SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8- 
digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate 
OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number 
and click on login. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and 
you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 
(DP) 

 
You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting 
facility.  After successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once 
you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider’s website for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e., CDSL and NSDL 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

 Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
CDSL 

       Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 1800 
21 09911, 022- 23058738 and 022-23058542-43.  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 022-4886 
7000, 022-2499 7000,1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 
30    

 
Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and 

non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 
 
(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Physical shareholders and shareholders 

other than individual shareholders & physical shareholders. 
 
1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

 
2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

 
3) Now enter your User ID  

 
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

 
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with 

the Company. 
 
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on 

an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 

 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable 
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 
contact Company/RTA. 

  
Dividend 
Bank Details 

OR  
Date of Birth 
(DOB) 

 
          Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in 

your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 
 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter 
the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in 
instruction  

 
(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 

However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu 
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. 
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of 
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting 
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

 
(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 
(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant ATVO Enterprises Limited (Formerly Known as Vandana 

Knitwear Limited) on which you choose to vote. 
 
(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent 
to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 
(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting 

page. 
 
(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available 
to the scrutinizer for verification. 

 
(xvii) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting Only 
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• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 
 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 
 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote 
on. 
 

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on 
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  
 

• It is mandatory that a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which 
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system 
for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 
 

• Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory 
who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 
bksharma162@gmail.com with a copy marked to vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com, if 
they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the 
scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

 
1. The procedure for attending meeting &e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions 

mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 
 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be 
displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 

 
3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 
 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 
any disturbance during the meeting. 

 
6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 

themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior to meeting 
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the 
AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting by 22nd 
September, 2025 mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com. These queries will be replied to by the 
company suitably by email.  

 
8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com
mailto:vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com
mailto:vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com
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their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

 
10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the 

same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes 
cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting 
is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN 
THIS NOTICE:  
 
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 
 

2. For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16-digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16-
digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) with your respective 
Depository Participant (DP). Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) 

 
3.  If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, 

you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 180021 09911, 022-23058738 
and 022-23058542/43. 

 
 All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 
Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon 
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an 
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 180021 09911,  022-23058542/43. 
 
 
The chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of the discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be 
held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of electronic voting for all those members 
who are present at the AGM but have not casted their votes by availing the remote e-Voting facility. 
 
The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast 
during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not exceeding 2 
working days of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, 
if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same. 

 
      The Scrutinizer shall within a period of not exceeding two working days from the conclusion of the e-

voting period make a Scrutinizer’s Report on the votes cast in favour or against, if any, and forthwith to 
the Chairman or a person authorized by him, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of 
the voting. The results along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the 
Company viz. www.vandanaknitwear.com and on the website of CDSL viz. www.evotingindia.com 
immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The 
results shall also be immediately forwarded to BSE Limited, Mumbai, where the shares of the Company 
are listed. 

 
 
 
 
 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.vandanaknitwear.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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Annexure to the Notice of AGM 
Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 36 

of the Listing Regulations 
SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 
 
Item No.: 2 
 
The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani (DIN: 00125231), as Managing Director for a 
period of 3 (Five) years w.e.f. 29.03.2021 at the 26th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th 
September, 2021. His tenure will expire on 28.03.2026.  
 
Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani is one of the contributors to the growth and development of the Company and he is 
focused in the execution of Mission and Vision of the Company. During his tenure, the Company has achieved 
decent growth. He is responsible for overall strategic planning and business development of the Company. 
After considering his performance, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, at their meeting held on 
02nd August, 2025 reviewed the performance of Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani and recommended his re-
appointment as Chairman & Managing Director for a period of further 3 (three) years with effect from 
29.03.2026 on the same terms and conditions as approved at 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on 29th September,2025. 
 
Based on the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at their 
meeting held 02nd August, 2025 have approved, subject to approval of members of the Company, the proposal 
for re-appointment of Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani as Chairman & Managing Director of the Company with effect 
from 29.03.2026 for a period of 3 (three) years at the terms and conditions of his appointment mentioned in 
the resolution. The terms of remuneration are in accordance with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. This 
approval will also be considered in terms of Regulation 17(6)(e) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as applicable. 
 
Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani has confirmed that he has not been disqualified under section 164 and Schedule V 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and also given declarations that he does not suffer from any disqualifications for 
his appointment or continuing as Director and has not been debarred from holding the office of Director by 
virtue of any SEBI order or any other such Authority. 
 
The payment of remuneration has already been approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee in 
its meeting held on 02nd Day of August, 2025 & subsequently by the Board of Directors in its Board Meeting 
held on the same date. Therefore, the Board proposes to seek approval of the Shareholders of the Company, 
approving the payment of remuneration in proportion to the profit of the Company to Mr. Naresh Kumar 
Gattani as detailed here under: 
 
Salary: No fix salary on monthly basis, except lump sum amount to be paid based on the increase of turnover 
and profitability and further approved from time to time by the Board of Directors and subject to overall limit 
as prescribed under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Perquisite: (a) For such amount as may be decided by the Board of Directors up to a maximum of Rs. 50,000/ - 
per month (which shall include HRA, Special Allowance & conveyance and reimbursement of Medical Expenses 
per month as per the rules and policy of the Company from time to time. 
 
Minimum Remuneration: Not withstanding anything herein contained, where in any financial year during the 
period of his office as a Managing Director, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the 
Company may, subject to the requisite approvals, pay remuneration by way of salary, allowances, perquisites 
lesser than the above stated salary amount and which is already well within the maximum limits laid down in 
Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, and as may be agreed to by the Board of 
Directors. 
 
Duties and Powers 
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The Managing Director carry on the business of the company and carry on such duties as may be entrusted to 
him by the Board of Directors of the company from time to time and separately communicated to him and 
such powers as may be assigned to him, subject to superintendence, control & directions of the board in 
connection with and in the best interests of the business of the company. 
 
The Managing Director undertakes to employ the best of his skill and ability and to make his utmost 
endeavours to promote the interests and welfare of the Company and to conform to and comply with the 
policies and regulations of the Company and all such orders and directions as may be given to him from time to 
time by the Board. 
 
Other Terms and conditions: 
 

1. The Managing Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 
2. This Agreement is subject to termination by either party giving to the other party one (1) 

month notice in writing at the party’s address given above or by making a payment of 
equivalent salary in lieu thereof 

3. The Company may terminate this Agreement forthwith by notice in writing to Mr. Naresh 
Kumar Gattani if he shall become bankrupt or make any composition or arrangement with his 
creditors or if he shall cease to be a Director or shall commit a breach of any of the terms, 
conditions and stipulations herein contained and, on his part, to be observed and performed. 

4. Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani shall during his term, abide by the provisions of the ATVO 
Enterprises Limited’s Code of Conduct and the core policies in spirit and in letter and commit 
to assure its implementation. 

5. This agreement is subject to the jurisdiction of the Courts of Rajasthan. The aforesaid 
information may be treated as an abstract of terms under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The specified information while seeking approval/ consent of the shareholders as 
required under Schedule V is listed out herein below: 
 

In compliance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, 
read with Schedule V thereto, the terms of appointment and remuneration specified above are now being 
placed before the Members for their approval. 
 
 
The brief profile of Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani in terms of Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations and Clause 
1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard-2, is annexed as Annexure - 1 hereto, and forms a part of this Notice. 
 
 
Save and except Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani, being appointees and Mr. Shorya Gattani and Mr. Siddharth 
Gattani (Additional Executive Director) being relative of the appointee, none of the other Directors/Key 
Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company/their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially 
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 2 of the notice. 
 
The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution as set out at item no. 2 of the Notice for approval 
by the shareholders. 
 
The above may be treated as a written memorandum setting out the terms of appointment of Mr. Naresh 
Kumar Gattani Section 190 of the Act. 
 
Item NO.: 3  
 
In accordance with Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 ("the Act"), every listed company and certain 
prescribed class of companies are required to annex a Secretarial Audit Report issued by a Company Secretary 
in practice, with their Board's Report prepared under Section 134(3) of the Act. 
 
Further, the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") vide its notification dated December 12, 2024, 
amended Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 
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("the Listing Regulations"). The amended provisions read with the SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-
2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024 inter-alia prescribes the term of appointment/ re-appointment, 
eligibility criteria, qualifications and disqualifications of the Secretarial Auditor of a listed entity. 
 
M/s S. Bhattbhatt & Co., Company Secretaries, were appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for 
the financial year 2024-25. Their tenure has come to an end at the conclusion of the said financial year and 
they are not proposed to be re-appointed. 
 
Pursuant to the aforesaid amendment, every listed entity is required to appoint a Secretarial Auditor who 
holds a valid Peer Review Certificate and annex the Secretarial Audit Report to its Annual Report. Moreover, 
the Listing Regulations stipulates that the appointment/ re-appointment of an individual as Secretarial Auditor 
cannot be for more than one term of 5 (five) consecutive years and in case of a firm, it cannot exceed two 
terms of 5 (five) consecutive years each. Such appointment/re-appointment must be approved by the 
shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting, based on recommendation of the Board of 
Directors. Additionally, any association of the individual or firm as the Secretarial Auditor of the listed entity 
prior to March 31, 2025 shall be excluded while calculating the permissible tenure. 
 
Accordingly, in compliance with the above provisions and based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on May 21, 2025, approved and recommended for the 
approval of the members, the appointment of M/s R.K. Jain & Associates, “Practicing Company Secretaries” 
Bhilwara ( Proprietor Mr. Rajendra Kumar Jain having ICSI Membership No. F4584; CP No. 5866; Peer Review 
Certificate No. 1361/2021 valid upto 31.07.2026), a peer reviewed firm, as the Secretarial Auditors of the 
Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, commencing from April 01, 2025 to March 31, 2030. 
 
While considering their appointment, the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee considered several 
factors, technical expertise, professional competence, industry knowledge and ability to navigate a dynamic 
and regulated business environment. Based on this evaluation, M/s R.K. Jain & Associates was found to be 
suitably qualified to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company effectively. 
 
Brief Profile of the Secretarial Auditor: 
 
Name of the Auditor: CS Rajendra Kumar Jain Proprietor of M/s R.K. Jain & Associates. 
 
Address: 5-A-25, RC Vyas Colony, Bhilwara -311001 Rajasthan India. 
 
Email: rkjainbhilwara@gmail.com 
 
Field of Experience: Having good working experience and proficiency in all matters related to company law, 
SEBI, Direct & Indirect Taxation and various other business laws. 
 
About the auditor: M/s R.K. Jain & Associates (Bhilwara Rajasthan) Practicing Company Secretaries, is a peer 
reviewed firm (Peer Review Certificate No 1361/2021).  
 
Mr. Rajendra Kumar Jain Proprietor of this firm is a Fellow member (FCS 4584) of ICSI holding a valid COP (COP 
No 5866).   
 
He has an experience in the field of Secretarial Compliances. He has handled various compliances related to 
Corporate Secretarial functions including Board processes, Secretarial Audit, Due Diligence, corporate 
governance matters etc. under the Companies Act and the SEBI Regulations. The firm is committed to provide 
timely and effective service to its clients. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives, are concerned 
Or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item No. 3 of the Notice.  
 
The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no. 3 of the accompanying 
Notice for approval of the Members of the Company. 
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Item No.: 4 
 
Regularization of Additional Director, Mr. Siddharth Gattani (DIN: 07418858) by appointing him as Director 
of the Company 
 
Mr. Siddharth Gattani (DIN: 07418858) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company at the Board 
Meeting held on 30.08.2025, in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Articles of Association.  
 
Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the above director holds office up to the date of ensuring 
Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
 
The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, is of the 
view that the appointment of Mr. Siddharth Gattani (DIN: 07418858) on the Company Board is desirable and 
would be beneficial to the Company and hence it recommends the said resolution No.4 for approval by the 
members of the Company. 
 
The brief profile of Mr. Siddharth Gattani (DIN: 07418858) in terms of Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations 
and Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard-2, is annexed as Annexure - 2 hereto, and forms a part of this Notice. 
 
Except Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani, Managing Director and Chairman & Mr. Shorya Gattani (Additional 
Executive Director) being relative, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above referred resolution.  
 
The board recommends the said resolution No. 4 to be passed as an ordinary resolution. 
 
 

Item No.: 5 
 
Regularization of Additional Director, Mr. Shorya Gattani (DIN: 06597345) by appointing him as Director of 
the Company 
 
Mr. Shorya Gattani (DIN: 06597345) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company at the Board 
Meeting held on 30.08.2025, in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Articles of Association.  
 
Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the above director holds office up to the date of ensuring 
Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
 
The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, is of the 
view that the appointment of Mr. Shorya Gattani (DIN: 06597345) on the Company Board is desirable and 
would be beneficial to the Company and hence it recommends the said resolution No.5 for approval by the 
members of the Company. 
 
The brief profile of Mr. Shorya Gattani (DIN: 06597345) in terms of Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations and 
Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard-2, is annexed as Annexure - 2 hereto, and forms a part of this Notice 
 
Except Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani, Managing Director and Chairman & Mr. Siddharth Gattani (Additional 
Executive Director) being relatives, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above referred resolution.  
 
The board recommends the said resolution No. 5 to be passed as an ordinary resolution. 
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Annexure-1 to Notice for AGM  
 

Details of Directors Seeking Re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

And Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings) 
 

Name of director Mr.  Naresh Kumar Gattani 
 

Date of birth & Age 24/06/1967 
58 Years 

Category of director Managing director 

DIN 00125231 

Nationality Indian 

Qualification  Graduate degree in Commerce 

Date of First Appointment / Re-appointment  Re-appointment w.e.f 29.03.2026 
  

Expertise/Experience in specific 
functional areas 

He is having more than 29 years of experience at 
Management Level in fields of textiles Real estate 
and also possess a diverse and wide experience in 
hotel industries.  
He is an effective communicator with exceptional 
relationship management skills and training 
developing and recognizing employees for 
outstanding effort and initiative. 

Skills and capabilities required for 
the role and the manner in which the 
proposed Independent Director 
meets such requirements 

N.A. 

Directorship held in other listed Companies Nil 
 

Disclosure of relationships between directors Related to Mr. Siddharth Gattani & Mr. Shorya 
Gattani Executive Director of the Company. 

Terms and conditions of appointment/ 
continuation of Directorship 

As per Resolution proposed in the Notice of AGM at 
item no. 2. Refer Annexure Notice of AGM 

Remuneration last drawn NIL 

No. of Board Meetings attended 
during FY 2024-25 

During the year 2024-25, Eight (8) Board meetings of 
the Company were held and Naresh Kumar Gattani 
had attended all of the Eight (8) Board Meetings. 

Listed entities from which resigned in past three years Nil 

Chairman / Member of the Committee of the Board of 
Directors of this Company 

Nil 

Shareholding in ATVO Enterprises Limited - - 

Shareholding in the Company as a 
beneficial owner 

Nil 

Directorship Held In Other Companies 1. Sona Processors (India) Limited  
2. Jaipur Indians Prime Private Limited 
3. Hyper Techno Buildmart Private Limited 
4. Atvo Agrochem Limited 
5. Iota Exports Private Limited 
6. Shape Hotel & Resorts Private Limited 
7. Shorya Business (India) Limited 
8. Bella Viesta Apparels Private Limited 
9. Divam Industries (India) Limited  
10. Leonard Minerals And Exim Private Limited 
11. Shubhshree Health Care Private Limited 
12. Shorya Motels Private Limited 
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Annexure-2 to Notice for AGM  
 

Details of Directors Seeking Appointment/Re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

And Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings) 
 

Name of director Mr. Siddharth Gattani 
 

Mr. Shorya Gattani 

Date of birth & Age 07/10/1992 33 years 29/10/1994 31 years 

Category of director Executive Director Executive Director 

DIN 07418858 06597345 

Nationality Indian Indian 

Qualification  BBA and management in finance BBA HONUERS 

Date of First Appointment / Re-
appointment  

30.08.2025 30.08.2025 

Expertise/Experience in specific 
functional areas 

Mr. Siddharth Gattani, holds a Bachelor’s Degree 
in Business Administration with specialization in 
Finance and has wide and varied experience in 
accounts, finance, and the capital market. 

Mr. Shorya Gattani has over 5 years of experience 
in ethanol manufacturing and real estate 
development. He has been actively involved in 
setting up and managing large-scale ethanol 
manufacturing projects and real estate ventures. 
His expertise lies in industrial operations, project 
execution, and strategic investments, enabling 
him to contribute significantly to the company’s 
growth and governance. 

Skills and capabilities required 
for 
the role and the manner in 
which the 
proposed Independent Director 
meets such requirements 

N. A N. A 

Directorship held in other listed 
Companies 

NIL NIL 

Disclosure of relationships 
between directors 

He is the son of Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani, who 
is the Chairman and Managing Director of the 
Company and also belong to Promoter group of 
the Company. 

He is the son of Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani, who is 
the Chairman and Managing Director of the 
Company and also belong to Promoter group of 
the Company. 

Terms and conditions of 
appointment/ 
continuation of Directorship 

The term of appointment of Siddharth Gattani as 
an Executive Director shall commence from 
August 30, 2025 until the date of resignation or 
retirement (whichever is earlier). 

The term of appointment of Shorya Gattani as an 
Executive Director shall commence from August 
30, 2025 until the date of resignation or 
retirement (whichever is earlier). 

Remuneration last drawn - - 

No. of Board Meetings attended 
during FY 2024-25 

- - 

Listed entities from which 
resigned in past three years 

Nil Nil 

Chairman / Member of the 
Committee of the Board of 
Directors of this Company 

Nil Nil 

Shareholding in ATVO 
Enterprises Limited 

29755907 19282563 

Shareholding in the Company as 
a 
beneficial owner 

29755907 (27.81%) 19282563 (18.02%) 

Directorship held in other 
Companies 

1. Shubhshree Health Care Private Limited 
2. Hyper Techno Buildmart Private Limited 
3. Atvo Agrochem Limited 
4. Scorpio Agrotech Private Limited 
5. Shorya Business (India) Limited 
6. Divam Industries (India) Limited 
7. SKS Securities Private Limited 
8. Iota Exports Private Limited 

1. 1. Shubhshree Health Care Private Limited 
2. 2. ATVO Agrochem Limited 

3. 3. Shorya Business (India) Limited 
4. 4. Iota Exports Private Limited 

5. Scorpio Agrotech Private Limited 
6. Divam Industries (India) Limited 
7. SKS Securities Private Limited 
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BOARDS’ REPORT 
 
To, 
The Members, 
ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 
 
Your directors are pleased to present the thirtieth (30th) Annual Report on the business and operations of the 
Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March 2025: 
 
1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
 
The financial results of your Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2025 are summarized below 
 

                                                (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs) 
 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Income from Business Operations 444.80 371.47 

Other Income 72.34 68.47 

Total Turnover 517.14 439.95 

Less: Expenditure except Depreciation 501.12 425.51 

Profit before Depreciation & Tax 16.02 14.44 

Less: - Depreciation 0.78 0.75 

Add: Exceptional Item - - 

Profit after depreciation and Interest 15.24 13.68 

Less: - Current Income Tax (incl. earlier year tax) 3.83 3.58 

Less: -Deferred Tax 0 -0.02 

Net Profit /Net Loss after Tax 11.41 10.12 

Earnings per share (Basic-Weighted Average)-Based on Current year 
Net profit 

0.01 0.00949 

Earnings per Share (Diluted-Weighted Average) -Based on Current 
year Net profit 

0.01 0.00949 

 
2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 
 
During the year under review the company has generated total Income of Rs. 517.14 lakhs as compared to 
previous financial year which was Rs.439.95 lakhs. The company has achieved net profit of Rs.11.41 lakhs as 
compared to previous financial year which was Rs.10.12 Lakhs. 
 
3. SHARE CAPITAL  
 
As on 31st March 2025, the Share Capital structure of the Company stood as follows:  
 

Particulars No of Shares Amount 

Authorized Share Capital 

Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 

Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each 10,69,85,070 10,69,85,070 
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Increase in Authorized Share Capital of the Company: 
 
During the Year, the Board of Directors of the company, increased the Authorized share capital of the Company 
from Rs.12,00,00,000 (Rupees Twelve Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each to Rs. 20,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty 
Crore) divided into 20,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- for the purposes of further issue of share capital 
required for new projects of the company and consequently, Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of 
the Company stands altered. 
 
There was no change In the Paid-Up share capital of the Company during the financial year 2024-2025. The 
Paid-up Share Capital of the Company 10,69, 85,070 divided into 10,69,85,070 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each.  
 
The said increase in Authorized Share Capital was approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 
28th October, 2024 and approved by the Shareholders of the Company dated 17th December 2024. 

 
Also, during the Financial Year 2024-25; there were 
  

❖ No Buy Back of Equity Shares.  
❖ No Employee Stock Option Plan was passed.  
❖ No Further public offers. 
❖ No Fresh Issue of Equity Shares by way of Bonus Allotment on Right Issue Basis 

 
Depository System: 

 
As the members are aware, the Company’s Equity shares are compulsorily tradable in electronic form. As on 
31st March 2025, the total listed capital of the Company was 10,69,85,070 Equity Shares out of which 
10,63,81,141 Equity Shares were held in Dematerialized Form comprising 99.44% of Issued Capital.  
 
The SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 mandate that the transfer, except 
transmission and transposition, of securities shall be carried out in dematerialized form only with effect from 
1stApril 2019. In view of the numerous advantages offered by the Depository system as well as to avoid frauds, 
members holding shares in physical mode are advised to avail themselves of the facility of dematerialization 
from either of the depositories. The Company has, directly as well as through its RTA, sent intimation to 
shareholders who are holding shares in physical form, advising them to get the shares dematerialized. 
 
4. DIVIDEND 
 
Following the conservative approach to retain profits, your directors did not recommend payment of any 
dividend for the financial year 2024-25. 
 
5. TRANSFER TO RESERVE 
 
The Board of Directors did not transfer any amount to reserve during the year ended on March 31, 2025. 
 
6. CHANGES IN PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY 
 
During the Financial Year 2024-2025, there is no change in the promoters of the Company. 
 
7. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS ACTIVITY 

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 28th October, 2024, approved the alteration of the Main Object 
Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company. The said alteration was duly approved by the 
members of the Company at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 17th December, 2024. 

During the year under review, the Company has amended its object clause to add the following new objects: 
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1) To carry on business as manufacturers, producers, processors, fabricators, importers, exporters, 
traders, buyers, sellers, retailers, wholesalers, suppliers, indenters, packers, movers, stockiest, agents, 
subagents, merchants, distributors, consignors, jobbers, brokers, concessionaires or otherwise deal in 
all kinds of fuel ethanol, and to deal in the by-products and joint products of fuel ethanol in India or 
elsewhere in the world. 
 

2) To carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, processors, millers, preparators, dealers, 
exporters, importers of all varieties of pulses, paddy rice, bran, wheat, wheat products and all other 
kinds and types of agricultural produce whether commercial crops, food grains, oil seeds or otherwise, 
directly as principals or as agents representatives, commission agents and with a view there to 
acquire, construct and erect integrated pulses and paddy processing project with facilities to produce 
pulses, rice, rice bran, oil, vanaspatti ghee, cattle feed, husk and all other products of backward and 
forward integration and factory or factories for other products. 

 
3) To undertakes commercial agricultural activities including raising of crops and plantation and to 

process and manufacture all types of agro based products and to deal in, trade, export and import 
such agricultural products including crops, vegetable and dairy products. 

 
4) To generate power by traditional and/or using, any latest technology for the captive consumption and 

also to distribute, sell such surplus generation if necessary to outsiders liquid, solid or gaseous, and 
petrochemicals of all kinds and to provide consultancy in respect of all or any of the aforesaid 
Wholesale of solid, liquid and gaseous fuels and related products. 

 
5) To carry on the business of spinners, weavers. manufactures, producers, ginners, pressures, packers, 

balers, liners, cleaners, processors, doublers, combers, woolcombers, worsted spinners, 
woolenspinners, knitters, dyers, bleachers, calanderers, sellers, buyers, traders, brokers, stockists, 
importers, traders, mercirisers, distributors, barterers, shippers and dealers in waste threads, yarn 
fibres, fibres, suitings, shirting, including wastecotton, sarees, all kinds of dress materials, readymade 
garments including all fabrica linen, jute, hemp, wool, polyester, acrylics, silk, artificial silk, rayon, 
manmade synthetic fibre, fibre, staple synthetic yarn any other fibrous material, allied products by 
products and to treat and use any waste arising from any and manufacturing, production, processes 
and to carry bon the business of manufacturers, processors, pro jobbers, Including doing the job work 
for others for others and getting the job work done from other designers, distributors, stockists, 
Importers, exporters, buyers. Sellers and dealers of all of any of the products of fabrics and textiles, 
industrial fabrics, non wovenfabrics, sheets, tapes. ropes, cords, twines, canvas, territowels, durries, 
newar, parachutes, carpets, rugs, blankets, namdas/terapaulines, lines worsted stuff, and other 
products, as are prepared of manufactured from nylon, polyesters, acrylics, rayon, silk, artificial silk 
Iinen, cotton wool, foam and any other synthetic, artificial and natural fibres and intermediates of all 
types, grades and formulations and including specifically lasticsp, polyester fibres, polyacronitrile, 
polyvinyl acetate, polypropelene nylon and rayon. 
 

6) Deal in immovable properties such as land and buildings or otherwise and to purchase, acquire, take 
on lease or in exchange or in any other lawful manner in India or abroad any area, land including 
agriculture land, plot, and buildings. structures, factories, farm houses and estates, real estates or 
interest therein and any rights over or connected with them and to develop the same for sale on 
installments or otherwise, or for any other purpose by preparing building sites and by constructing, 
altering, improving, developing, promoting, decorating, furnishing, maintaining of heritage spots, 
hotels, resorts, malls, plazas, shopping malls, farm houses, complexes, commercial and residential 
buildings, colonization, multi storeyoffices, multiplex, amusement park, flats, gardens, houses, shops, 
showrooms and townships and to equip them or any part thereof with all or any amentites or 
conveniences thereon and by consolidating or connecting or subdividing properties and leasing or 
disposing of the same and to manage such land and buildings and to carry on the business as 
colonizers, developers to act as civil engineers, managers, advisers, consultants, planners, architects, 
designers, buildings experts, promoters, contractors, subcontractors of government, semi 
government, general contractors in the field of real estate in India or abroad and To carry on the 
business of apply, acquire, maintain any type of civil construction work viz roads, canells, dams, 
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bridges, infrastructure items with any government or any authority, supreme , municipal, local or 
otherwise or from private sector byway of bid or tender. 
 

7) To carry on the business of manufacture, trade, buy, sell, import, export, agent, distributor, C and F 
agent, processor, packer, consignor, contractor, turnkey contractor, consultants, liasion, quarry and 
deal in all and every kind of building materials, including gitty concrete, bajri, stones, cement, bricks, 
lime, titles, earthen, killin owner, ceramic wares, wall coverings, mud articles, paper machine articles, 
stones, cement, rodi, bajri. 

 
8) To buy take on lease, sub lease or under licence, contract, concession, grant or otherwise acquire 

mines and mining rights any land or other place and metalliferrous land and interest therein and 
explore, work, export, develop for the purpose of mining and minerals, minerals of economic, 
industrial importance in any part of the world. 

 
9) To carry on the business as exporters, importers, buyers, purchase, sellers, traders, distributors, 

stockiest, franchise commission agents and agents, for all type of marketing and services, brokers, C 
and F agents, education, jewelry items, agency business industrial and consumer goods, provisions 
and foodstuffs, ceramic and ceramic items, glass, china wares, glass ware, porcelain wares, crockery 
wares, pottery, tableware, hotel wares, glass wares, sanitary wares, sanitary systems, decorative 
wares, earth wares, earth ware, cement glaze, tiles, FMCG, dry fruits, pharmaceutical, stationary, gift 
items, handicraft paper and paper products, paintings, computers, ceramics, sanitary items, medicine, 
books, optical items, readymade garments, woolen suits, men and women wear, kids wear, textiles, 
fabrics, hosiery goods handicrafts, cotton, scarves, sarees, woolen items, pillow cover, bed cover, 
fibers of textile material whether agriculture or animal or natural products of manmade and other 
synthetic fibers and filaments and all kinds of textile machines, textile substances, handloom and 
power loom products, carpet, floor covering, furnishings, fabrics, durries all kinds of precious and 
semi-precious stones, marbles, granites, glass, plywood, furniture, wood and wooden items, cement, 
steel, pipes, gem and jewelers, curious, plastic and plastic products toys, leather and leather goods, 
rice and other food grains and processed and preserved food, fresh food, plant seed dry fruits, 
eatable, all kinds of edible and non-edible oils, oil seed and their products, vegetables, vegetables 
products, dairy products, brewer, horticultural products, flowers, marine products and sea food, tea, 
tobacco and tobacco products, all kinds of electrical and electrical products, wires and cables, goods 
and appliances, engineering goods, auto parts and machinery parts, software, hardware, all kinds of 
cosmetic and toiletries items, all kind of shoe, chapels, ladies sandal , footwars, all kinds of iron, scalp 
salt and chemicals. 
 

10) To do and carry on the business In India and elsewhere as manufacturers Producers, processors, 
formulators, Purchasers and sellers, exporters, and importers, merchants, distributors, traders, 
marketing and dealing in chemicals and basic drugs, drug intermediates, fine chemicals intermediates 
disinfectants, insecticides, pesticides, germicides, deodorants, detergents, cosmetics, petro- 
chemicals, Bio- chemicals preparations and elements, agricultural chemicals, organic- inorganic 
chemical, dyes and dyes intermediates varnishes, resins, essence, perfumes, plastic To spirit, sprays, 
alkalis, acids and salts. 

 
11) To carry on the business of buying, selling, reselling, importing, transporting, Storing, developing, 

promoting, marketing or supplying, trading, dealing in any Manner whatsoever in all type of goods on 
retail as well as on wholesale basis in India or elsewhere. To Import and exports and manufacturing of 
all type of Items as Bicycle tyres and tubes, solid tyres, bicycle parts, rims, bicycle chains, Saddles, 
rubber solutions, rubber of all kinds and all rubber products, motorcycle Tyres and tubes, motor cycles 
parts, off highway tyres and tubes, Agricultural tyres, ATV tyres, lawn and mining tyres, passengers 
Vehicle tyres and tubes, truck tyres and tubes, radial tyres of all kinds, Nylon cord, steel wires, Rubber 
chemicals, import and export of all machines, equipment for any industry. 

 
12) To construct, build, establish, erect, promote, undertake, acquire, own, operate, transport, equip, 

manage, renovate, reconstruct, develop, set up, turn to account, maintain, keep, operate and run 
multiple food processing units for manufacturing, processing, preparing, preserving, refining, buying, 
selling and otherwise dealing in any manner in all type of food and food related products including 
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cereals, spices, masala, beverages, dairy products, milk products, convenience foods and processed 
foods of all kind and every description and providing incidental and ancillary services in relation 
thereto, and to act as buyer, seller, stockiest, distributors, importer, exporter, or otherwise to deal in 
all sorts of food grains, commodities, vegetables, fruits, edibles, vegetarian and non-vegetarian food 
products and similar goods and to establish, promote, develop, manage multiple brands, trade name 
and trademarks in relation to the business of the Company for dealing in food articles, food products, 
fast moving consumer goods and other consumer products and for such purpose to act as a brand 
owner, licensee, franchisee, representative or distributor and/ or otherwise. 

 
During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 28th October, 
2024 approved the adoption of a new set of Articles of Association of the Company in conformity with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, in place of the existing Articles of Association which were based on the 
erstwhile Indian Companies Act, 1956. 
 
Further, the Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 28th October, 2024, approved the 
adoption of a new set of Memorandum of Association of the Company in conformity with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, in place of the existing Memorandum of Association which was based on the erstwhile 
Indian Companies Act, 1956. 
 
Subsequently, the shareholders of the Company, at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 17th 
December, 2024, approved the adoption of the aforesaid new Memorandum of Association and Articles of 
Association. Accordingly, the existing Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company 
have been replaced with new sets aligned with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
8. CHANGE IN NAME 
 
The Company has changed its name from “Vandana Knitwear Limited” to “ATVO Enterprises Limited” pursuant 
to the special resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company held on 17th December, 2024. The change 
in name was approved by the Registrar of Companies, by issuing a new Certificate of Incorporation dated 26th 
March 2025. 
 
9. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY 
 
The Provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 
 
10. INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARY/ JV/ASSOCIATE COMPANY 

 
As on 31st March, 2025, The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company and 
the provisions regarding disclosure of names of companies which ceased to be the subsidiary, joint ventures or 
associate companies are not applicable. 
 
11. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE 
 
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE (Bombay Stock Exchange) Limited. The Listing fee for the 
financial year 2025-2026 has been paid by the Company. 
 
12. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
There are changes in the Directorship of the Company since the last Annual General meeting. 
 
As on March 31, 2025, The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of following Five (5) Directors:  
 

Sr. 
No 

Name  DIN Date of 
Appointment  

Designation 

1. NARESH KUMAR GATTANI  00125231 29/03/2021  Managing Director
  

2. CHARUL GATTANI  09796702 25/05/2023  Executive Director 



ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

      

27 
 

and Non-
Independent 
Director 

3. CHITRA NARANIWAL  09077116 25/05/2023 Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

4. ARPIT JAIN  10166012 25/05/2023 Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

5. SIDDHARTH JAIN  10164421 25/05/2023 Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

 
 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
During the Year under review, following persons are key managerial personnel of the company. 
 
Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani    : Chairman & Managing Director 
Mr. Archit Patodi                     : CFO 
Ms. Kirti Agarwal                      : Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 
 
Resignations/Retirements along with facts of resignation:  
 
1. During the Year, Mrs. Rajana Gattani resigned from the post of Non-Executive Non-Independent Director as 
on 17.05.2024 due to pursue other career opportunities. 
 
2. Resignation of Mrs. Charul Gattani (DIN- 09796702) from the post of Executive Director from the Board of 
the Company with effect from the closure of business hours on August 30th, 2025 (After the financial year 
ended but before reporting period) 
 
Retire by rotation and Re-appointments:  

Pursuant to Section 149(13) of the Companies Act, 2013, the independent directors are not liable to retire by 
rotation. Further Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 stipulates that 2/3rd of the total number of 
directors of the public company should be liable to retire by rotation and out of such directors, 1/3rd should 
retire by rotation at every Annual General Meeting of the company. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board states that during the year 
under review, one Director resigned from the Board and two Directors were appointed as Additional Directors. 
The Additional Directors hold office up to the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are not considered for the 
purpose of retirement by rotation. 

Further, as per the terms of appointment, the Managing Director of the Company is not liable to retire by 
rotation. 

Accordingly, none of the Directors are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Re- Appointment of Chairman & Managing Director  
 
Subject to consent of Members, Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani was appointed as Chairman & Managing Director of 
the Company for a tenure of 3 (three) years w.e.f. 29.03.2026. As such, your directors recommend his 
appointment at the said designation on such terms and conditions as furnished in Explanatory Statement 
annexed to the Notice calling AGM. 
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Appointment as an Additional Director (After the financial year ended but before reporting period) 
 
The Board of Directors on the recommendation of Nomination and remuneration Committee, appointed Mr. 
Siddharth Gattani (DIN: 07418858) and Mr. Shorya Gattani (DIN: 06597345) as an Additional Director 
(Executive Non-Independent) of the Company, with effect from August 30, 2025.  
 
No other changes have taken place in composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company during the year under review. 
 
 
 
15. KYC OF DIRECTORS 
 
The MCA as per Rule 12A of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, mandated 
Director KYC (DIR-3 KYC) / (Web KYC) who has been allotted a Director Identification Number (DIN) and whose 
DIN status is approved on the Ministry of Corporate Affairs within specified time period.  
 
All the Directors of the Company have complied with said requirement.  
 
16. AUDITORS  
 
STATUTORY AUDITORS 
 
M/s S. N. Kabra and Co., Chartered Accountants (Proprietor CA Satyanarayan Kabra -Membership Number -
072497) had resigned as the Statutory Auditors effective September 05, 2024. The resultant casual vacancy 
had been filled by the board of directors by appointing M/s. Naresh Maheshwari & Co., Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No.007113C), as the Statutory Auditors, to hold office up to the conclusion of the 34th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company. The shareholders of the Company at the 29th Annual General 
Meeting held on 28th September 2024, have appointed M/s. Naresh Maheshwari & Co., Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No.007113C) as the Statutory Auditors for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, from the 
conclusion of 29th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 34th Annual General Meeting. 
 
Accordingly, they have conduced Statutory Audit for the 2024-2025 and shall continue to be Statutory Auditors 
for the financial year 2025-2026. They have confirmed their eligibility to continue as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for the financial year 2025-2026 under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed 
there under. 
 
The Audit Report on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025, issued by M/s. 
Naresh Maheshwari & Co., Chartered Accountants, is unmodified and do not contain any qualifications, 
reservations or adverse remarks. The information referred in Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and hence 
do not require any further clarification. 
 
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR  
 
The Board of Directors had appointed Mr. Suhas Bhattbhatt (Membership No. A11975), Practicing Company 
Secretary, to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 In consonance with 
the requirements of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. 
 
Accordingly, they have conducted Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-2025 and A Secretarial Audit 
Report issued by Mr. Suhas Bhattbhatt, Practicing Company Secretary, for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2025 in form MR-3, is given as an Annexure to this Report. 
 
Pursuant to provisions of Regulation 24A of Listing Regulations the Secretarial Auditors have also issued Annual 
Secretarial Compliance Report for the F.Y. 2024-25.  
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M/s S. Bhattbhatt & Co., Company Secretaries, were appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for 
the financial year 2024-25. Their tenure has come to an end at the conclusion of the said financial year and 
they are not proposed to be re-appointed. 
 
Pursuant to Provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations 
the Board of Directors, on recommendation of Audit Committee, at their meeting held on 21.05.2025 has 
recommended appointment of M/s R K Jain & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. 
FCS 4584; CP No. 5866 Peer Review Certificate No. 1361/2021, valid up to 31.07.2026) as Secretarial Auditors 
of the Company for first term of consecutive five years commencing from the Financial Year 2025-26 to 
Financial Year 2029-30 subject to approval of shareholders at the ensuing AGM. The Company has received 
their written consent that the appointment is in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder. 
 
INTERNAL AUDITOR 
 
Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the 
Board of Director at its meeting held on 21st May, 2025, has appointed Mr. Vivek Agnihotri as the internal 
auditors of the Company to undertake the Internal Audit of the Company for FY 2025-26. The role of internal 
auditors includes but not limited to review of internal audit observations and monitoring of implementation of 
corrective actions required, reviewing of various policies and ensure its proper implementation. The Company 
has received their written consent that the appointment is in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder.  
 
The observations and suggestions of the Internal Auditors were reviewed, and necessary corrective/ preventive 
actions were taken in consultation with the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditor conducts the internal audit 
of the functions and operations of the Company and reports to the Audit Committee and Board from time to 
time. 
 
COST AUDITOR 
 
Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 
2014, cost audit and maintenance of cost records is not applicable to the Company for the Financial Year 2024-
25. Therefore, requirement of cost auditor is not applicable. 
 
17. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS & ANALYSIS 
 
Your directors adhere to the requirements set out In Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosures Requirements) Regulation, 2015, and have implemented all the prescribed requirements. In 
pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulation, 2015, 
the Report on Management Discussions & Analysis has been incorporated in the Annual Report and forms an 
integral part of the Directors' Report and provides overview of the business and operations of the Company. 
 
16. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS  
 
During the financial year, no significant and material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or 
Tribunals impacting the going concern status and future operations of the Company. 
 
17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
All the related party transactions that were entered during the financial year are done on arm’s length basis. 
Relevant Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 is given in Annexure-B 
to this Report. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 188 of the Act and rules made thereunder, all the 
contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into by the Company during the year under review with Related 
Parties were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. All related party transactions 
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were approved by the Audit Committee as per the provisions of the Act and the listing regulations. The policy 
on related party transactions is available on the Company’s website. 
 
During the period under review, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction 
with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the Policy on Materiality of and 
Dealing with Related Party Transactions. 
 
The details of the Related Party Transactions are set out in the Notes to Financial Statements forming part of 
this Annual Report. During the year under review, there are no material significant related party transactions 
made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons and 
their relatives which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Also, the 
Company has a process in place to periodically review and monitor Related Party Transactions. 
 
There were no transactions requiring disclosure under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act.  
The Policy on Related Party transactions is available at the website of the Company under the link 
http://www.vandanaknitwear.com/downloads/policy-on-dealing-with-related-party-transactions-
amended.pdf 
  
18. DEPOSITS 
 
During the year under review, your Company has not accepted/renewed any public deposits under Section 73 
of the Act read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and as such, no amount of principal or 
interest was outstanding as of the Balance Sheet date. 
 
19. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
 
Provisions relating to Corporate Governance Report under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are applicable to the Company. 
 
The Company is committed to maintain the high standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the 
requirements set out in Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),2015. 
Pursuant to regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, the Reports 
on Corporate Governance have been incorporated in the Annual Report and form an integral part of the 
Board’s Report.  
 
Certificate from Statutory Auditors i.e. M/s. Naresh Maheshwari & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration No.007113C), regarding compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated 
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),2015 form part of Annual Report. That section 
also include: Details about the number of meetings of the Board held during 2024-25, composition of the Audit 
Committee. All the recommendations given by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board 
 
The Company also filed with the Stock Exchanges, the quarterly Integrated Report on Corporate Governance in 
terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
20. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 
The requisite information with regard to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange 
Earnings and outgo, in terms of the Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given below: 
 

S No. Conservation of Energy Remarks 

1. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy Nil 

2. the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy Nil 

3. the capital investment on energy conservation equipment Nil 

 

S No. Technology absorption Remarks 

1. the efforts made towards technology absorption Nil 

http://www.vandanaknitwear.com/downloads/policy-on-dealing-with-related-party-transactions-amended.pdf
http://www.vandanaknitwear.com/downloads/policy-on-dealing-with-related-party-transactions-amended.pdf
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2. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product NIL 
development or import substitution 

Nil 

3. in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned 
from the beginning of the financial year) 

Nil 

4. the details of technology imported Nil 

5. the year of import Nil 

6. whether the technology been fully absorbed Nil 

7. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, NIL 
and the reasons thereof; and 

Nil 

8. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development Nil 

 

S No. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo Remarks 

1. The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year Nil 

2. The Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows Nil 

 
Further, there were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review. 
 
21.  MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 
 
The Board met 8 (Eight) times during the financial year 2024-25 i.e., on 10.04.2024, 17.05.2024, 08.06.2024, 
05.08.2024, 05.09.2024, 28.10.2024, 25.11.2024 and 23.01.2025. The necessary quorum was present for all the 
meetings. The details of number of Board Meetings and the attendance of the Directors are provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Board’s Report. The maximum interval between any two 
meetings did not exceed 120 days (as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standards-1 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).) 
 
 

Board Meetings  Attendance 

Date of Meeting Total Number of 
directors as on the 
date of meeting  

 

Number of directors 
attended  

 

% of attendance 

10.04.2024 6 6 100 

17.05.2024 6 6 100 

08.06.2024 5 5 100 

05.08.2024 5 5 100 

05.09.2024 5 5 100 

28.10.2024 5 5 100 

25.11.2024 5 5 100 

23.01.2025 5 5 100 

 
During the year under review, the Company convened its 29th Annual General Meeting (AGM) on Saturday, 
28th September, 2024. In addition to the AGM, an Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the members 
was held on December 17, 2024 for transacting special business as set out in the notice convening the said 
meeting. 
 
Further, details of the meetings of the Board and its Committees are given in the Corporate Governance 
Report, which forms part of the Annual Report. 
 
Further, during the year, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on March 
27, 2025 to discuss and review the performance of all other non- independent Directors, Chairperson of the 
Company and the Board as a whole and for reviewing and assessing the matters as prescribed under Schedule 
IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and under Regulation 25(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
 
22. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
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The Directors would like to inform the Members that the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended March 
31, 2025, are in full conformity with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013. The Financial Accounts are 
audited by the Statutory Auditors (M/s Naresh Maheshwari & Co., FRN: 007113C). The Board of Directors of 
the Company hereby state and confirm that: 
 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) sub section 3 (c) of the Companies Act, 2013,  
 

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures; 
 

ii. the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 
company for that period; 
 

iii. the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

iv. the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
 

v. the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
 

vi. The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

23. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 
 
During the period under review, the personal and industrial relations with the employees remained cordial in 
all respects. Your Company consider its Human Resources as the key to achieve its objective. Keeping this in 
view, your Company take utmost care to attract and retain quality employees. The Company believes that, by 
effectively managing and developing human resources, it can achieve its vision, a significant effort has been 
undertaken to develop leadership as well as technical/ functional capabilities in order to meet future talent 
requirement. 
 
Information as per Rule 5(1) of Chapter XIII, The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is shown in Corporate Governance Section. 
 
During the year, there was No employee receiving remuneration exceeding Rs. 1,02,00,000/- (Rupees One 
Crore Two Lakhs only) per annum and/or Rs. 8,50,000/- (Rupees Eight Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) per month. 
So, no disclosure required as per prescribed under the Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014  
 
There were no employees posted and working in a country outside India, not being Directors or relatives, 
drawing more than the amount prescribed under the Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Hence, the details are not required to be circulated to the 
Members and also not required to be attached to this Annual Report. 
 
24. BOARD EVALUATION: 
 
The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board committees and 
Individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Corporate Governance requirements as 
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prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regulations 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). 
 
The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the 
basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information 
and functioning, conduct as per Company values & beliefs, contribution towards development of the strategy 
& business plan, risk management, receipt of regular inputs and information, codes & policies for 
strengthening governance, functioning, performance & structure of Board Committees, skill set, knowledge & 
expertise of Directors, preparation & contribution at Board meetings, leadership, etc. The performance 
evaluation of the respective Committees and that of Directors was done by the Board excluding the Director 
being evaluated. 
 
The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) reviewed the performance of the 
Individual Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual Director to the Board 
and Committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive 
contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his 
role. 
 
In a separate meeting of independent Directors, performance of non-independent directors, performance of 
the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of 
Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors. The same was discussed in the board meeting that followed 
the meeting of the Independent Directors, at which the performance of the Board, its committees and 
individual Directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the 
entire board, excluding the Independent Director being evaluated. The evaluation process has been explained 
in the corporate governance report section in this Annual Report.  
 
 
25. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
All the Independent Directors have given their declaration to the Company stating their independence 
pursuant to Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and complied with the code for Independent Directors 
prescribed in schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. They have further declared that they are not debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the SEBI /Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such statutory authority. In the opinion of Board, all the Independent Directors are persons of 
integrity and possess relevant expertise and experience including the proficiency. All Independent directors of 
the company are registered on IICA Independent Director database. Further, Independent Directors fulfill the 
conditions of appointment as specified in the SEBI (Listing Regulations) and in the Companies Act, 2013 and are 
Independent of the Management. 
 
26. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 

As required under Regulation 46(2) (i) of the Listing Regulations, the Company has put in place a familiarization 

program for the Independent Directors to familiarize them with their role, rights and responsibilities as 

Directors, the working of the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model 

etc, the details of familiarization programs conducted during the Financial Year is placed on the Company’s 

website and the same can be accessed at www.vandanaknitwear.com. 

 
27. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for Directors appointment and 
remuneration including criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a 
Director. The following attributes/criteria for selection have been laid by the Board on the recommendation of 
the Committee:  
 

http://www.vandanaknitwear.com/
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•  the candidate should possess the positive attributes such as leadership, entrepreneurship, business 
advisor or such other attributes which in the opinion of the Committee are in the interest of the 
Company;  

•  the candidate should be free from any disqualification as provided under Sections 164 and 167 of the 
Companies Act, 2013; 

•  the candidate should meet the conditions of being independent as stipulated under the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Listing Agreement entered into with Stock Exchanges, in case of appointment as an 
independent director; and  

•  the candidate should possess appropriate educational qualification, skills, experience and knowledge 
in one or more fields of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, corporate 
governance, technical operations, infrastructure or such other areas or disciplines which are relevant 
for the Company’s business. 

 
The Policy of the Company on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and other matters provided under sub-section 
(3) of section 178, is appended as Annexure – A to this Report. The Policy has been posted on the website of 
the Company http://www.vandanaknitwear.com/investor-relations.asp . 
 
28. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

 
Your Company has a duly constituted Audit Committee, its composition as well as charter are in line with the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder and Regulation 18 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Audit Committee of the Company 
comprises of Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal (Chairperson), Mr. Arpit Jain & Mr. Siddharth Jain as Members.The 
details relating to the same are given in Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report. 
During the year under review, all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the 
Board.  
 
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (“NRC”)  
 
Pursuant to provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder and Regulation 19 of the 
listing regulations, the Company has duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The details 
relating to the same are given in Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report.  
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises of Mr. Arpit Jain (Chairperson), 
Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal and Mr. Siddharth Jain as Members 
 
The Committee identifies persons qualified to become Directors, and recommends to the Board the 
appointment, remuneration and removal of the Directors and senior management. The Committee’s role also 
includes formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of the Directors & the Board as a whole, and 
administration of the Employee Stock Option Schemes of the Company. All the recommendations made by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee during the year were accepted by the Board. 
 
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee 
 
The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 to be read with Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulation, 2015. The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of the Company comprises of Mr. 
Siddharth Jain (Chairperson), Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal & Mr. Arpit Jain as Members.  
 
The details with respect to the composition, powers, roles, terms of reference, number of meetings held, 
attendance at the meetings etc. of Statutory Committees are given in detail in the Corporate Governance 
Report. 
 

http://www.vandanaknitwear.com/investor-relations.asp
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29. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 

COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH 

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT: 

 
During the Financial year below mentioned material Changes were made: 
 

a) The Company’s Name was changed from Vandana Knitwear Limited to ATVO Enterprises Limited. 
b) Change in main Business Activity carried out by the Company as set out in point Change in the nature 

of Business of the Company. 
 
30. ENVIRONMENT AND POLLUTION CONTROL: 
 
The terms relating to compliance with all relevant statutes relating to the environment and pollution control in 
the area of environment are not applicable.  
 
31. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
The Company has framed a sound Internal Risk Management System to identify and evaluate business risks 
and opportunities and the same has become integral part of Company’s Day to day operations. The key 
business risks identified by the Company are as follows viz. Industry Risk, Management and Operations Risk, 
Market Risk, Government Policy risk, Liquidity risk, and Systems risk. The Company has in place adequate 
mitigation plans for the aforesaid risks. The Audit Committee and Board are supervising the proper risk 
identification and mitigation process. 
 
Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by 
coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of unfortunate 
events or to maximize the realization of opportunities. The Company has laid down a comprehensive Risk 
Assessment and Minimization Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These procedures 
are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly defined 
framework. The major risks have been identified by the Company and its mitigation process/measures have 
been formulated in the areas such as business, project execution, dg event, financial, human, environment and 
statutory compliance. 
 
The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy with the objective of ensuring sustainable business 
growth with stability and to promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks 
associated with the business. The detailed Risk Management framework has been provided in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report of the Company which is integral part of the Annual Report  
The Policy is available under the linkhttp://www.vandanaknitwear.com/downloads/risk-assessment-and-
management-policy.pdf. 
  
32. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 
 
Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual 
working in its premises through various interventions and practices. The Company always endeavors to create 
and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. 
 
The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013(“ POSH Act”). Internal 
Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All 
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 
 
During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with all the provisions of the POSH Act and 
the rules framed thereunder. Further details are as follow: 
 
 

a Number of complaints of Sexual Harassment received Nil 
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in the Year  
 

b Number of Complaints disposed off during the year Nil 

c Number of cases pending for more than ninety days Nil 

 
 
33. MATERNITY BENEFIT: 
 
The Company declares that it has duly complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. All 
eligible women employees have been extended the statutory benefits prescribed under the Act, including paid 
maternity leave, continuity of salary and service during the leave period, and post-maternity support such as 
nursing breaks and flexible return-to-work options, as applicable. The Company remains committed to 
fostering an inclusive and supportive work environment that upholds the rights and welfare of its women 
employees in accordance with applicable laws. 
 
 
34. EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION: 
 
(A) None of the employees of the company was in receipt of the remuneration exceeding the limits 

prescribed u/s 197 (12) read with rule 5, sub-rule 2 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review. 
 
Further, disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is also given under 
Annexure –C & D 
 

(B) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details 
in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of The 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are forming part of 
this report.  

 
35. LOANS GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

 

During the year under review, the Company has not given any Loan, Guarantee or provided Security In 
connection with a loan nor has made any investment under the section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

36. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY  

 

Your Company has sound and adequate internal control systems commensurate with its size and nature of 
business. We constantly upgrade our systems for incremental improvements. The Audit Committee of the 
Board periodically reviews these systems. These systems ensure protection of assets and proper recording of 
transactions and timely reporting. Internal audit is conducted out by an independent professional firm on 
regular basis. The Audit Committee also regularly reviews the periodic reports of the Statutory Auditors, 
Internal Auditors and Accounts departments. The Company has trained the staff in order to upgrade with the 
recent changes in the taxation like GST. Audit Committee constantly tries to add value by evaluating existing 
systems. 
 
The Audit Committee has satisfied itself on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal financial control 
systems laid down by the management. The Statutory Auditors have confirmed the adequacy of the internal 
financial control systems over financial reporting. 
 
The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in the Management 
discussion and Analysis, forming part of this annual report 
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37. VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 

 

As per Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has formulated an effective Vigil Mechanism 
which provides a robust framework for dealing with genuine concerns & grievances. Specifically, employees 
can raise concerns regarding any discrimination, harassment, victimization, any other unfair practice being 
adopted against them or any instances of fraud by or against your Company. During the Financial Year under 
review no complaint was received by the Company.  
 

The whistle blower policy of the company is available on company's website www.vandanaknitwear.com. In 
pursuance of the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for 
directors and employees to report genuine concerns has been established. During the year under review, no 
protected disclosure concerning any reportable matter in accordance with the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle 
Blower Policy of the Company was received by the Company. 
 

 

38. ANNUAL RETURN  
 
As required under Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return for the financial year ended on 31st March 
2025 in Form MGT-7 pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is put on the Company's website and can be accessed at 
http://vandanaknitwear.com/investor-relations.asp. 
 
39. CODE OF CONDUCT: 

 
The Board has laid down a code of conduct for board members and senior management personnel of the 
Company. The code incorporates the duties of independent directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the said code of 
conduct. A declaration in this regard signed by the Managing Director is given at the end of the Corporate 
Governance Report. 
 
40. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  
 
The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
on Board Meetings and General Meetings and approved by the Central Government under section 118(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
41. CASH FLOW ANALYSIS: 
 
In conformity with the clauses of the Listing Regulations, the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 
31, 2025 is annexed hereto. 
 
42. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016: 
  
During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the name of the 
Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.  
 
43. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION 
WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS: 
  
During the year under review, there has been no one time Settlement of loans taken from Banks and Financial 
Institutions. 
 
44. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING: 

 
The Board has adopted a revised Code of Prevention of Insider Trading based on the SEBI (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. All the Directors, senior management employees and other employees who 
have access to the unpublished price sensitive information of the Company are governed by this code. During 

www.vandanaknitwear.com
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the year under Report, there has been due compliance with the said code of conduct for prevention of insider 
trading. 
 
45. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND  

 
Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend declared or paid by the Company, the provisions of Section 125 
of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply. 
 
46. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
Your Board acknowledges with appreciation, the invaluable support provided by the Company’s stakeholders, 
auditors, advisors and business partners, all its customers for their patronage. Your Board records with sincere 
appreciation the valuable contribution made by employees at all levels and looks forward to their continued 
commitment to achieve further growth and take up more challenges that the Company has set for the future 
 
 
                                                      By Order Of the Board 
                                         For ATVO Enterprises Limited 
                                                                                                               (Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 
  
  
 
                                                                                                                          Sd/- 
                                              Naresh Kumar Gattani  
Place: Bhilwara                DIN: 00125231 
Date: 30.08.2025                                                             Chairman & Managing Director 
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Annexure A to the Boards’ Report 
 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
A transparent, fair and reasonable process for determining the appropriate remuneration at all levels 
of ATVO Enterprises Limited (Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) (“the Company”) is 
required to ensure that the shareholders remain informed and confident in the management of the 
Company. To harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company 
and in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the rules made there under and 
the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to 
time (“LODR Regulations”), this policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors (including non-
executive directors), the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management has been 
formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. 
This Policy shall act as a guideline for determining, inter-alia, qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director, matters relating to the remuneration, appointment, removal and 
evaluation of performance of the Directors (including non- executive directors), Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management Personnel. 
 
2. OBJECTIVE OF THE POLICY 
 
(a)   The objective of this Policy is to outline a framework to ensure that the Company’s 

remuneration levels are aligned with industry practices and are sufficient to attract and 
retain competent director(s) on the Board, KMP(s) and the Senior Management Personnel 
of the quality required and to allow fair rewards for the achievement of key deliverables and 
enhanced performance. The key objectives of this Policy include: 

 
(i) to formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive attributes and 

independence (wherever applicable) of directors for their appointment on the Board of the 
Company. 

(ii) to recommend to the Board the remuneration payable to the directors, KMPs and  senior 
management personnel. 

 
(b) While determining the remuneration for the directors (including non- executive directors), KMPs 

and senior management personnel, regard should be given to prevailing market conditions, 
business performance and practices in comparable companies, also to financial and commercial 
health of the Company as well as                prevailing laws and government/other guidelines, to ensure that 
pay structures are appropriately aligned and the levels of remuneration remain appropriate. 
 

(c) While designing the remuneration package, it should be ensured: 
 
(i) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate the person, to ensure the quality required to run the Company successfully; 
(ii) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks; and 
(iii) remuneration to directors, KMPs and senior management involves a balance between fixed and 

incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working 
of the Company and its goals. 

 
3. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Policy shall be effective from the date of its adoption by the Board. 
 
4. DEFINITIONS 
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(a) In this Policy, unless the context otherwise requires: 
 
‘Board of Directors’ or ‘Board’, in relation to the Company, means the board of directors of the 
Company. 
 
‘Committee’ means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or 
reconstituted by the Board, in terms of the Act and LODR Regulations. 
 
‘Independent Director’ means a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Act read with LODR 
Regulations. 
 
‘Key Managerial Personnel’ (KMP) shall have the meaning described to it in the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder. 
 
‘Policy’ means this Nomination and Remuneration Policy, as may be amended            from time to time. 
 
‘Senior Management Personnel’ for this purpose shall mean personnel of the Company who are 
members of its core management team excluding Board of Directors. It would comprise all members of 
management one level below the executive director(s), including the functional heads. 
 
(b) Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not 
defined herein but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 and/ or LODR Regulation as may be amended 
from time to time shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein. 
 
5. APPLICABILITY 
 
This Policy is applicable to: 
 
(i) Directors 
(ii) Key Managerial Personnel 
(iii) Senior Management Personnel 
 
6. MEMBERSHIP 

 
(a) The Committee shall consist of such number of directors as is required under applicable laws. 
(b) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report and on the website of 

the Company. 
(c) Term of the Committee shall be continuous unless terminated by the Board of Directors. 
 
7. CHAIRMAN 
  

(a)   The Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director. 
 

(b) The Chairman of the Company (whether executive or non-executive) may be appointed 
as a member of the Committee but shall not be the Chairman of the Committee. 

 
(c) The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting may be 

present at the Annual General Meeting or may nominate some other member to 
answer the shareholders’ queries. 

 
8. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS 
 

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such intervals as may be required subject to 
minimum one meeting in a financial year. 
 

9. COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS 
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A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is 
discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated. 

 
The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the 
meetings of the Committee. 
 
 

10. SECRETARY 
 
 The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee. 
 
11. QUORUM 

 
The quorum necessary for transacting business at a meeting of the Committee shall be two 
members or one-third of the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee; 
whichever is greater. 
 

12. VOTING 
 

(a) Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority 
of votes of members present. Any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a 
decision of the Committee. 

 
(b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote. 

 
13. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
 The Committee is responsible for: 
 

a) formulating criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a director for the purpose of this Policy; 

 
b) advising the Board on issues concerning principles for remuneration and other terms of 

employment including remuneration for the Directors (including non-executive 
directors), KMPs and the Senior Management; 

 

c) monitoring and evaluating programs for variable remuneration, both on- going and 
those that have ended during the year, for the Directors (including Non-Executive 
Directors), KMPs and the Senior Management; 

 

d) monitoring and evaluating the application of this Policy; 
 

e) monitoring and evaluating current remuneration structures and levels in the Company; 
and 

 

f) any other responsibility as determined by the Board. 
 

14. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS, KMP OR SENIOR  MANAGEMENT        PERSONNEL 
 
(a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the 
person for appointment as a Director, KMP and/or Senior Management Personnel and recommend to the 
Board his / her appointment. 
 
(b) The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a 
person are sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position. 
 
(c) Appointment of Directors, KMPs and Senior Management Personnel is subject to compliance of 



ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

      

42 
 

provisions of the Act and LODR Regulations. 
 

 
 

 
 
15. REMUNERATION 
 

(a) Remuneration to Executive Director 
 
Fixed pay: 
 

• Executive Director(s) shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be 
approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee in accordance with the 
statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time 
being in force and the approvals obtained from the shareholders of the Company. 

 

• The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s 
contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and 
approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee. 

 
Variable component: 

 

• The Executive Director(s) may be paid performance linked commission within the overall 
limits as approved by the shareholder and Central Government, wherever required. 

 
Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors: 
 

(i) The remuneration to the Non-executive Directors (including Independent 
Directors) may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit 
not exceeding 1% or 3%, as the case may be, of the profits of the Company computed as per the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

 
(ii) The Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors of the Company are 

entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending meetings of Board or 
Committee thereof in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

 
(iii) The Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock incentive of the 

Company. 
 

(iv) Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive / Independent Directors for services 
rendered which are of professional in nature shall not be considered as part of the 
remuneration for the purposes of clause (b) above if the following conditions are satisfied: i) The 
services are rendered by such director in his capacity as the professional; and ii) In the opinion 
of the Committee, the director possesses the requisite qualification for the practice of that 
profession. 

 
Remuneration to KMP and Senior Management Personnel: 
 

(i) KMP and Senior Management shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as 
may be approved by the Committee in accordance with the statutory provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under for the time being in force. 

 
(ii) The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s 

contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and 
approved by the Committee. 
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(iii) Based on the performance, KMP and Senior Management Personnel will be paid 
incentives. 

 
(iv) Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its managing director, 

whole-time director, manager, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Company 
Secretary for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall 
not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if 
such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as 
part of the remuneration. 

 
 
16. POLICY ON BOARD DIVERSITY 
 

a) The Board of Directors shall have the optimum combination of Directors from the 
different areas/ fields like production, management, quality assurance, finance, sales and 
marketing, research and development, Human Resources etc. or as may be considered 
appropriate. 

 
b) The Board shall have at least one Board member who has accounting or related 

financial management expertise. 
 
17. REMOVAL 
 
The Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a 
Director(s), KMP(s) and Senior Management subject to the provisions and compliance of                    the applicable 
Act, rules and LODR Regulations. 
 
18. DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 
 
This Policy shall be disclosed in the Board’s report. 
 
19. DEVIATION FROM THE POLICY 
 
The Board may, in individual or collective case, deviate from this Policy, in its absolute discretion, if 
there are reasons to do so. In the event of any departure from the Policy, the Board shall record the 
reasons for such departure in the Board’s minutes. 
 
20. AMENDMENTS TO THE POLICY 
 
The Board of Directors on its own and / or as per the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee can amend this Policy, as and when deemed fit. 
 
In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant authorities, not 
being consistent with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such amendment(s), 
clarification(s), circular(s) etc. shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and this Policy shall stand 
amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down under such amendment(s), clarification(s), 
circular(s) etc. 
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Annexure-B to the Boards’ Report 
 

Form No. AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length 
transactions under third proviso thereto: 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 
 
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: N.A. 
 
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Nil 
 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Nil 
 
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Nil 
 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Nil 
 
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: Nil 
 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil 
 
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188: Nil 
 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: N.A. 
 
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Nil 
 
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Nil 
 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Nil 
 
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Nil 
 
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: Nil 
 
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  30-08-2025 
Place: Bhilwara  

By Order Of the Board 
For ATVO Enterprises Limited 

         (Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 
 
 
 

Sd/- 
                                        Naresh Kumar Gattani  
    DIN: 00125231 
                                                 Chairman & Managing 

Director 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
Your directors are pleased to present the Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year ended 31st 
March, 2025. 
 

ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRY OVERVIEW GLOBAL ECONOMY  
  
Global Economic Overview – FY 2024-25 
 
The global economy witnessed moderate but resilient growth during FY 2024-25, with global GDP 
expanding by 3.1% navigating challenges such as ongoing geopolitical tensions, evolving trade patterns 
and changing monetary policies. This was driven by easing inflationary pressures and robust consumer 
demand in key economies. Global inflation declined to 5.2% from 5.9% in FY24, reflecting normalization in 
commodity prices and improved supply chain efficiencies. 

 
In response, governments worldwide recalibrated their economic strategies, focusing more on 
technological advancement, bolstering supply chain resilience and promoting economic diversification to 
drive long-term sustainable growth. 
 
Global inflation eased from 6.6% in CY 2023 to 5.7% in CY 2024, largely due to effective monetary policy 
measures and improved stability in energy markets. These developments helped restore price stability and 
reinforced the momentum of global economic recovery. Emerging markets and developing nations were 
the primary engines of growth, expanding by 4.3%, compared to a 1.8% increase in advanced economies. 
This divergence was fuelled by robust domestic demand, rising foreign investment and reduced 
dependence on external trade. 
 
Outlook  
 
Global economic growth is anticipated to remain modest over the next few years, with forecasts indicating 
a 2.8% increase in CY 2025 and 3.0% in CY 2026. This outlook is supported by a gradual reduction in 
inflation and sustained efforts by central banks to maintain economic stability through targeted monetary 
measures. Emerging markets are projected to sustain robust growth, with an estimated expansion of 3.7% 
in CY 2025, whereas advanced economies are expected to recover at a slower pace, posing a growth rate 
of approximately 1.4% in the same year 
 
Inflation is expected to continue its downward trend, reaching 4.3% in CY 2025 and 3.6% in CY 2026, which 
is likely to bolster consumer spending. Despite recent tariff increases impacting global trade, the resilience 
and interdependence of the global economy remain intact. 
 
In response to evolving market conditions, both governments and businesses are actively reconfiguring 
supply chains in response to shifting dynamics. Additionally, ongoing advancements in technology, rising 
workforce productivity and improved infrastructure are poised to support sustainable long-term economic 
growth, contributing to renewed global optimism. 
 
India’s Economy and Industry Overview 
 
India remains a standout performer on the international stage and is expected to continue leading global 
growth. Despite a slight downward revision from its earlier forecast in January 2025 to factor in 
heightened global trade tensions and uncertainty, the IMF has projected India to remain the fastest-
growing major economy over the next two years, with India's GDP expected to grow at 6.2% in 2025 and 
6.3% in 2026 
 
The global textile market size was valued at approximately USD 1,976.84 billion in 2024, with growth 
driven by increasing demand for functional fibres, technological progress and heightened customer 
awareness of environment-friendly and sustainable products. The Asia Pacific region dominated the 
market with 54% of the global share in 2024, with major contributions from India, China and Bangladesh. 



ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

      

46 
 

Factors such as raw material availability, a young fashion-conscious population and favourable 
government policies fuelled the region’s growth. 
 
Looking ahead, the global textiles market is poised for substantial expansion, reaching an estimated USD 
3,047.24 billion by 2030. The sector’s future will be shaped by continued advancements in smart textiles, 
growing applications in technical fields and a shift towards sustainable production. India continues to play 
a significant role in driving global economic growth, with GDP grew by 6.5% in FY 2024-25 despite global 
challenges, such as geopolitical conflicts, supply chain disruptions and shifting trade dynamics. 
 
 
This growth is supported by strong rural demand, increasing foreign investment and government initiatives 
aimed at boosting consumption and capital expenditure. While the service sector has seen steady 
expansion, manufacturing remains a major pillar of the economy. The government’s emphasis on “Make in 
India” and the National Logistics Policy is catalysing a renewed focus on manufacturing, which is being 
positioned as a central pillar of India’s longterm economic strategy. With favourable demographics, 
improving ease of doing business, and supply-chain diversification, India is emerging as a global alternative 
manufacturing hub. 
 
Within this broader context, the textile and apparel sector, a cornerstone of India’s industrial ecosystem, is 
witnessing significant transformation. Structural reforms such as the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) 
Scheme, establishment of PM-MITRA Textile Parks and programmes like Samarth for skill upgradation and 
the National Technical Textiles Mission (NTTM) further support innovation, capacity, and exports, all 
intended together to make the sector modern. Expansion in textile manufacturing is also being driven by 
rising domestic consumption, increased export potential, and greater adoption of automation and 
sustainable practices. 
. 
Yarn manufacturing, forming the upstream base of the textile value chain, plays a critical role in enabling 
downstream segments such as Apparel and garments, technical textiles, automotive fabrics, and home 
furnishings. The demand for Polyester Filament Yarn (PFY) in particular is growing steadily due to its 
durability, versatility, and alignment with sustainability trends, especially in dope-dyed variants that 
eliminate water intensive dyeing processes. Companies with integrated capabilities, cost-efficiency, 
environmentally friendly manufacturing practices, sustainable energy solutions, and proximity to key 
markets are well-positioned to benefit from this shift. 
 
India ranks among top textile exporters with 4.6% global share. 
 
5th largest producer of technical textile. 
 
2nd largest producer of Cotton, Polyester, Viscose & Silk 
 
India’s manufacturing sector, along with supportive government measures played a crucial role in 
expediting economic growth and bolstering employment opportunities. India has now become the 4th 
largest economy of the world, ahead of Japan. The country’s per capita income has also doubled in last 10 
years. 
 
Global Textile Industry  
 
The global textile industry, valued at US $ 1,976.84 billion in FY 2024, exhibited steady growth driven by 
the increasing demand for natural fibres. Additionally, the Asia Pacific region, remained a dominant 
market owing to its easy access to raw materials, a young population driving demand for fashionable 
apparel and significant government investments in countries, such as India, China and Bangladesh. The 
industry is highly fragmented, with a broad spectrum of offerings, which spans clothing and home décor to 
technical and medical textiles. Moreover, it has major players continuously adopting strategies to 
strengthen their market positions. 
 
The textile market size has grown strongly in recent years. It will grow from $640.43 billion in 2024 to 
$696.16 billion in 2025 at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 8.7%. The growth in the historic 
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period can be attributed to growth in world population, increased demand for man-made fibers, 
government initiatives for the textile industry, strong economic growth in emerging markets and a ban on 
plastic usage. The anticipated growth can be attributed to continued global population growth and 
urbanization, rapid e-commerce expansion, rising leisure spending, increased retail penetration, and 
greater internet and smartphone usage. Additionally, the demand for contactless delivery solutions is 
expected to propel market growth further. 
 
The textile market size is expected to see strong growth in the next few years. It will grow to $915.96 
billion in 2029 at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 7.1%. The growth in the forecast period can 
be attributed to global population growth and urbanization, a rapid growth in ecommerce, rising spend on 
leisure, increasing retail penetration, increasing internet penetration and smartphone usage and growing 
preference for contactless delivery solutions. Major trends in the forecast period include focus on adopting 
digital textile printing inks, focus on use of non-woven fabrics, focus on using organic fibers, focus on 
sustainable fibers, focus on using blockchain in the manufacturing processes, focus on implementing 
digital platforms in textile supply chain management, focus on collaborating with technology companies to 
design and develop smart fabrics, focus on adopting robotics and automation, focus on investing in 
artificial intelligence and focus on partnerships and collaborations to develop innovative products. 
 
 Key trends shaping the future of the textile market include the adoption of digital textile printing inks, 
non-woven and organic fibres, sustainable practices, blockchain technology in manufacturing, and digital 
platforms in supply chain management. Moreover, there is a growing focus on smart fabrics, robotics, 
automation, artificial intelligence, and strategic partnerships to develop innovative products.  
 
Companies in the textile industry are well-positioned to capitalise on these trends by expanding their 
online presence, leveraging e-commerce platforms, and integrating advanced technologies. 

 
Artificial intelligence (AI) in textile manufacturing is a key trend gaining popularity in the textile market. 
Textile manufacturers are increasingly using artificial intelligence (AI) to improve production processes and 
product quality. Artificial intelligence is also being used for the quality inspection of fabrics. 
 
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 
 
Indian textile and apparel industry 
 
The textile and apparel industry being a major economic driver, contributes significantly to the nation’s 
GDP and employment generation. As one of the largest sources of employment after agriculture, the 
sector engages over 45 million people directly.2 The industry witnessed steady growth 2024, with the 
market value reaching an estimated US$ 222.08 billion and is projected to sustain its growth in the 
upcoming years.3 This growth is expected to be propelled by rising domestic consumption, with India's 
expanding middle class fueling demand for high-end and branded apparel and the exponential rise in 
online retail that has made fashion more accessible across both urban and rural markets. The sector 
benefits from a unique blend of traditional craftsmanship and modern innovation, displayed at landmark 
events like Bharat Tex 2025, which drew global attention to India's capabilities in sustainable textiles. 

 
Outlook 
 
The textile and apparel industry stands as a key driver of economic growth. However, it has reinforced its 
global market presence as well. The sector's export potential strengthened, supported by expanded trade 
alliances, improved infrastructure and a favorable policy environment. Also, government support, 
technological advancement, rising consumer demand and FTA major consuming countries has set India’s 
textile and apparel industry for a high growth trajectory, thereby, propelling sustained expansion and 
innovation in the forthcoming years. 
 
OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK GLOBAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS  
 
Opportunities: The Indian textile industry is witnessing a growing emphasis on sustainability, transcending 
beyond organic cotton and improved working conditions. Companies are now overhauling their entire 
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value chain, from raw material sourcing to production, supply chain management, and waste recycling, 
shifting from a linear to a circular model. This comprehensive strategy addresses both pre- and post-
consumer waste, positioning sustainability as a fundamental element of the industry’s future. 
 
The technical textiles sector is making strides by producing advanced fabrics through the application of 
cutting-edge technology to both natural and synthetic fibres. Emphasising durability, insulation, and heat 
resistance, fabrics like Nomex, Kevlar, and Spandex are finding applications across healthcare, automotive, 
construction, and security sectors. The growing demand for technical textiles, especially in medical, eco-
friendly, industrial, sports, healthcare, automotive, and housing applications, is set to shape the future 
trajectory of the textile industry. Bharat Tex 2024 is an excellent platform to highlight India's exceptional 
capabilities in the textile industry 
 
Government initiatives 
 
he Indian government's proactive initiatives and policies play a crucial role in driving growth in the textile 
industry. Programs such as the 'Make in India campaign and the 'National Textile Policy aim to promote 
domestic manufacturing, boost exports, and attract investments into the sector. 
 
Government support and separate recognition of technical textiles in policy frameworks. 
 
Policy and Export Incentives: 
 
PLI scheme offers capital support for MMF investments and scale-up. PM-MITRA Textile parks promote 
integrated clusters with shared infrastructure. India’s strong cotton and growing polyester base improves 
export competitiveness. 
 
Digital Transformation and E-Commerce: 

 
The rapid growth of e-commerce platforms presents new avenues for market expansion in the Indian 
textile industry. With the increasing penetration of smartphones and internet connectivity, online retailing 
has become increasingly popular among Indian consumers. Textile companies can leverage digital channels 
to reach a wider audience, improve customer engagement, and enhance the overall shopping experience. 
According to the Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, India's digital economy is expected to 
reach USD 1 trillion by 2025, offering immense opportunities for textile businesses to capitalize on digital 
transformation and e-commerce trends. 
 
Strength 
 
Large integrated players benefit from economies of scale in production and procurement. Adoption of 
automation and advanced machinery ensures consistency and throughput. Integrated Polymerization 
Spinning and texturizing reduce handling costs and lead times. 
 
Weaknesses 

 
Synthetic yarns depend on crude oil derivatives (PTA, MEG), whose prices are unpredictable. Cotton yields 
are susceptible to climate variation and global supply trends. Fluctuations impact temporary demands, 
working capital and pricing strategy 
 
Traditional dyeing processes are water-intensive and generate effluents. Energy consumption in spinning 
and heating processes adds to the carbon footprint. Growing need for compliance with environmental 

regulations adds cost and complexity. 
 
Threats: The industry is grappling with high material prices, which have been a persistent issue. 
Fluctuations in the costs of essential raw materials, such as cotton and synthetic fibres, can lead to 
increased production expenses, affecting profit margins. 
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A notable decline in export demand has been observed, with textile and apparel exports registering a 
decrease of 3.24% in 2024-25 compared to the previous year. This downturn is attributed to various global 
economic factors, including geopolitical tensions that affect international trade dynamics. 
 
The ongoing geopolitical conflicts, particularly the situation stemming from the Russia-Ukraine war, have 
disrupted supply chains and created uncertainties in the global market. These conflicts contribute to a 
slowdown in demand for goods, further impacting the textile sector. 
 
Delay in modernization may erode global market share. Pressure to reduce water usage, emissions, and 
chemical discharge. Buyers increasingly demand traceability, certifications, and green compliance. Non-
compliance can lead to loss of large institutional and export orders. Inadequate transportation networks, 
outdated manufacturing facilities, and insufficient power supply infrastructure contribute to operational 
inefficiencies and higher production costs. 
 
Fragmented Industry Structure  

 
The Indian textile industry is highly fragmented, comprising numerous small-scale and unorganized players 
alongside larger corporations. This fragmented structure often leads to inefficiencies in production, 
distribution, and marketing. Small-scale producers face challenges such as limited access to finance, 
outdated technology, and lack of economies of scale. 
 
Additionally, the presence of a large informal sector makes regulation and quality control difficult, 
impacting the overall reputation of Indian textiles in international markets. 
 
 • Intense competition between established brands and private label brands. 
 • Low-cost substitute products from other countries  
• Significant presence of small suppliers has reduced the bargaining power.  
• Major clothing brands have better bargaining power over textile manufacturers, as the product 
differentiation is low and numbers of players are high and fragmented. 
 
 
BUSINESS OVERVIEW 
 
India is expecting another year of solid economic performance. The investment momentum was solid 
through the fourth quarter and should continue this fiscal, driven by public investments and a gradual 
pick-up in private investments aided by the PLI scheme. Government Capex, led by infrastructure, is 
budgeted for a sharp rise. This fiscal, private consumption is expected to continue to face crosscurrents. 
While lower inflation will be supportive, higher interest rates may curtail sectors such as automobile and 
housing. The economists predict growth to slow in FY25 as global conditions weigh down the economy. 
Growth is likely to moderate, in part, due to normalization of base effect. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Company considers risk management a vital aspect of its operations and has established a 
comprehensive framework to identify, evaluate and mitigate risks across all functional areas. This 
framework involves periodic risk assessments, continuous monitoring of key indicators and the 
formulation of appropriate mitigation strategies. Oversight is provided by a dedicated Risk Management 
Committee composed of Directors and senior leadership, which routinely reviews relevant policies and 
advises management on risk-related matters. The Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area of 
financial risks and controls. Additionally, a third-party organisation has benchmarked the Company’s risk 
management practice with various companies in India and globally and pronounced it as a leader in FMCG 
category.  

 
DISSCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 
2013 and applicable accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The 
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details of the financial performance of the Company are appearing in the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss 
Accounts and other financial statements forming part of this annual report. 
 
SEGMENT–WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE 

 
The Company has only One Reportable Segment i. e. Knitting Job work as per IND AS 108 Operation 
Segments and so therefore separate disclosure on reporting by business segments not required. 
 

 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 
 
The Company has implemented a robust internal control system to ensure the efficiency and effectiveness 
of operations, accurate financial reporting and compliance with laws and regulations. The Company has 
established comprehensive policies and procedures for all major business processes, including 
management, human resources, procurement and inventory management. Regular audits are conducted by 
internal auditors to monitor compliance with these policies and procedures and to identify areas for 
improvement. The Company also maintains a system of checks and balances, including the segregation of 
duties and clear lines of authority and responsibility. Through these measures, the Company aims to 
minimise the risk of fraud, errors and other financial irregularities, to foster transparency and accountability 
throughout the organisation. 
 
HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 
 
The Company regards its human resources as amongst its most valuable assets and proactively reviews 
policies and processes by creating a work environment that encourages initiative, provides challenges and 
opportunities and recognizes the performance and potential of its employees attracting and retaining the 
best manpower available by providing high degree of motivation.  

 
Your Company believes in trust, transparency & teamwork to improve employees’ productivity at all levels. 
 
DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 
 
While preparation of financial statements, a relevant Accounting Standard treatment has been followed. 
 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 
This report on Management Discussion and Analysis includes forward-looking statements, which are 
predictions, expectations, projections, or estimates about the Company’s objectives. These statements are 
based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. However, actual results may differ from 
these statements due to various factors such as changes in government regulations, tax laws and other 
statutes. Additionally, unforeseen events such as force majeure could affect the actual result. It is 
important for readers to understand the context in which these statements are made and that they may 
not reflect future outcomes accurately. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  30-08-2025 
Place: Bhilwara  

By Order Of the Board 
                                           For ATVO Enterprises Limited 

      (Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 
 
 

Sd/- 
                                         Naresh Kumar Gattani  

    DIN: 00125231 
                                                         Chairman &  

Managing Director 
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FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

To,  
The Members,  
ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 
Bhandari Plaza, 2nd Floor, 
 Opp. Nagar Parishad Rajendra Marg Road, 
Bhilwara, Rajasthan 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by ATVO Enterprises Limited (Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) (hereinafter 
called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the ATVO Enterprises Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit and as per the explanations given to 
us and the representations made by the Management, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 generally complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:  
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to 
us and maintained by ATVO Enterprises Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025, 
according to the applicable provisions of: 
 
i. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under, as applicable;  

ii. The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;  
iii. The Depositories Act, 2018 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;  
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent 

of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Not 
Applicable to the Company during audit period);  
 

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company:  
 
A. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) (Second 

Amendment) Regulations, 2015;  
B. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;  
C. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; (Not applicable during the reporting period) 
D. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable during the reporting period) 

E. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not 
applicable during the reporting period); 

F. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable during the 
reporting period) 
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G. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not 
applicable during the reporting period) and  

H. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable 
during the reporting period) 
 

v. Other laws specifically applicable to the Company namely –  
 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  
 

1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and 
2) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the Securities and   

Exchange Board of India   (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.  
 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, and Standards etc. except that following:   
 

(a) During the period under review, the company has not complied the requirement of 47 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 

(b) During the period under review, as per Regulation 33(1) (d) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the 
Statutory Auditor S. N. Kabra issued Limited Review Report for the Quarter ended June 2024, was not 
holding valid Peer Review Certificate. 

(c) During the period under review, the company did not appoint Internal Auditor as per requirement of 
companies act 2013. 

(d) During the period under review, the entity has complied with regulation 3(5) and 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 however, there were instances of delayed entries in the designated 
software due to technical issue. 

(e) It is to be noted that M/s. S.N. Kabra and Company, Statutory Auditors of the Company, resigned with 
effect from September 5, 2024. The resignation was given after 45 days from the end of the preceding 
quarter and it is further noted that the M/s. S.N. Kabra & Company did not issue the Limited Review 
Report for the following quarter i.e., 30.09.2024 as per SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18th 
October, 2019. 

 
We further report that: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- 
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act except 
mentioned above.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
during the year. A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  
 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.  
 
We further report that during the year following instances occurred; 

1. Mrs. Ranjana Gattani (DIN: 00125150) resigned as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director w.e.f. 17th 
May, 2024. 

2. M/s. S. N. Kabra and Co., Chartered Accountants, resigned as Statutory Auditors vide letter dated 
05.09.2024. 

3. M/s. Naresh Maheshwari & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 007113C), were appointed as Statutory 
Auditors to fill the casual vacancy and for a term of five years from the conclusion of the ensuing AGM. 

4. The Registrar of Companies, Jaipur, issued a fresh Certificate of Incorporation on 26th March, 2025, 
consequent to change of name from "Vandana Knitwear Limited" to "ATVO Enterprises Limited”. 

5. The Members approved the change of name from "Vandana Knitwear Limited" to "ATVO Enterprises 
Limited" through resolution dated 17th December, 2024. 
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We further report that there are adequate system and processes in the company commensurate with size and 
operation of the Company to monitor and ensure the Compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulation and 
guidelines.  
 
We further report that during the audit period there were no instances of  

a) Public / Rights / Debentures / Sweat Equity  
b) Redemption / Buy Back of Securities  
c) Merger / Amalgamation / Re-construction etc.  
d) Foreign Technical Collaboration / Equity Participation. 

 
 
 
For S Bhattbhatt & Co.  
Practicing Company Secretaries  
 
Sd/- 
Suhas Bhattbhatt  
Proprietor 
A.C.S.:11975; C.P.:10427 
UDIN: A011975G001070153 
 
Place: Vadodara  
Date: 23/08/2025 
 
 
This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure -1 and forms an integral part 
of this report. 
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‘Annexure -1’ 

 

To,  
The Members,  
ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 
Bhandari Plaza, 2nd Floor, 
Opp. Nagar Parishad Rajendra Marg Road, 
Bhilwara, Rajasthan 
 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  
 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  

 
2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis 
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and 
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 

the Company.  
 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

 
5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on 
test basis.  

 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

 

For S Bhattbhatt & Co.  
Practicing Company Secretaries  
 
Sd/- 
Suhas Bhattbhatt  
Proprietor 
A.C.S.:11975; C.P.:10427 
UDIN: A011975G001070153 
 
Place: Vadodara  
Date: 23/08/2025 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

This report is prepared in accordance with the principles of Corporate Governance as prescribed by The 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) in terms of Regulation 34 read with Chapter IV and Schedule V of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [“SEBI Listing Regulation, 2015”] and 
the report contains the details of Corporate Governance systems and processes at ATVO Enterprises limited 
(“AEL” or “The Company”) 
 
I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 
 
Corporate Governance is most often viewed as both the structure and the relationships which determine 
corporate direction and performance. The Board of Directors is typically central to Corporate Governance. Its 
relationship to the other primary participants, typically shareholders and management, is critical. Additional 
participants include employees, customers, suppliers, and creditors. The Corporate Governance framework 
also depends on the legal, regulatory, institutional and ethical environment of the community.  
 
The Corporate Governance report is pursuant to Regulation 27 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and contains the details of Corporate Governance systems and practices at 
ATVO Enterprises Limited (Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) (AEL) 
 
The Company adheres to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 
(hereinafter referred to as "SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015" or "SEBI Regulations") and your management is 
taking all possible steps to fulfill its commitment in a judicious, fair and transparent manner.  
 
In accordance with this philosophy, the Company has adopted Code of Conduct for its Senior Management 
Personnel and Board of Directors 
 
I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY 

 

ATVO Enterprises Limited (AEL or the ‘Company’) believes that timely disclosures, transparent accounting 
policies and a strong and independent Board go a long way in maintaining good corporate governance, 
preserving shareholders’ trust and maximizing long-term corporate value. 
 

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance focuses on the attainment of the highest standards of  
transparency, accountability, ethics and equity with management flexibility, empowerment and responsiveness 
in the interest of shareholders, customers, employees, business associates and the society at large. 
 
Under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we have implemented 
comprehensive corporate governance practices to ensure transparency and accountability. These include 
regular disclosures, adherence to board composition requirements, and maintaining a robust internal control 
framework. We have also ensured compliance with the disclosure requirements related to financial 
performance, corporate actions, and shareholder rights. 
 
In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, we adhere to various provisions concerning corporate 
governance, financial disclosures, and board responsibilities. This includes maintaining accurate and timely 
records, conducting annual general meeting, and ensuring compliance with statutory audit requirements. 
 
II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Keeping with the commitment to the principle of integrity and transparency in business operations for good 
corporate governance, the Company's policy is to have an appropriate blend of independent and non-
independent directors to maintain the independence of the Board and to separate the Board functions of 
governance and management. 
 

a) Composition & category of the board of directors and attendance of each director at the meeting of 
the board of directors and the last annual general meeting 
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The Board of Directors of the Company consists of eminent persons with considerable professional expertise 
and experience in business and industry, finance, management legal and marketing fields. 
 
The Company has a very balanced structure of Board of Directors, which take care of the business necessity 
and stakeholders’ interest. The Board consists of 5 Directors comprising of 2 Executive ((including Managing 
Director) and 3 Non-Executive Independent Directors (including one women independent director) is in 
conformity with Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (herein- after referred as “Listing Regulations”) and applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (herein- after referred as “the Act”). The Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani Chairman & 
Managing Director of the Company (Executive Directors). The Board represents an optimal mix of 
professionalism, knowledge and experience. Hence, the Company has an appropriate blend of Executive and 
Non-Executive Independent Directors. No Independent Director is connected to each other by virtue of any 
relation. The Independent Directors with their diverse knowledge, experience and expertise bring in their 
independent judgment in the deliberation and decisions of the Board. 
 

a) Directors’ Attendance Record and Directorship held  
 
During the year 2024-25 i.e., from 1st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025, the Board met 8 (Eight) times on 
10.04.2024, 17.05.2024, 08.06.2024, 05.08.2024, 05.09.2024, 28.10.2024, 25.11.2024 & 23.01.2025. The 
frequency and intervening gap between the meetings were within the period prescribed under the Listing 
Regulations and Secretarial Standards-1issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) on 
Meetings of the Board of Directors The maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings was less 
than hundred and twenty days. 
 
The Board composition (name & category) as on 31st March, 2025, Director’s attendance at the Board meetings 
held during the year and at the last Annual General Meeting, is as follows: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Category of 
Director 

No. of 
Director
ships in 
other 
listed 
Compan
ies# 

No. of other Board 
Committees 
(Audit/ 
Stakeholder 
Committee(s)) of 
which Director is 
(Including this 
Listed Entity) 

No. of Board Meetings 
during the year  

Attendance 
at the  
last AGM 
i.e 
28/09/2024 

Chair 
man  

Membe
r 

Held 
(*eligible 
to attend) 

Attended 

1. Mr. Naresh 
Kumar Gattani 

Executive –
Managing 
Director 

00 Nil Nil 8 8 Yes 

2. Mrs. Ranjana 
Gattani 

Non-Executive 
Non-
Independent 
Director 

00 - - 2 2 No 

3. Mrs. Charul 
Gattani  

Executive 
Director 

00 Nil Nil 8 8 Yes 

4. Mrs. Chitra 
Naraniwal 

Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

01 01 07 8 8 Yes 

5. Mr. Siddharth Jain Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

00 01 02 8 8 Yes 

6.  Mr. Arpit Jain Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

00 01 02 8 8 Yes 

 
#includes directorship held in only Listed Companies and does not include Private Limited Companies, Foreign 
Companies and Companies u/s 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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• Mrs. Charul Gattani resigned from the post of Executive Director w.e.f 30.08.2025 

• None of the directors on the Board were Directors in more than 10 (Ten) Public Limited Companies 
and were members of more than 10 committees or acted as Chairperson of more than 5 committees 
across all the companies in which they were directors.  
 

• None of the Directors were related to any director or were a member of an extended family. 
 

• None of the Independent Directors of the Company served as Independent Director in more than 7 
Listed Companies. 

 
b)  Number of other Board of Directors or Committees in which a director is a member or Chairperson 

as on 31.03.2025 (including the Company): 
 

Sr. 
No  

Name of 
the 
Director  

Directorships Committee positions 
in listed and unlisted 
Public Limited 
Companies 
(i.e., Audit 
Committee & 
Stakeholder 
Relationship 
Committee) 

Committee 
positions in 
listed 
and unlisted 
public 
limited 
companies in 
Nomination & 
Remuneration 
Committees 

  In equity 
listed 
companies 

In unlisted 
public 
limited 
companies 

In private 
limited 
companies 

As member 
(Including 
as chair 
person) 

As 
Chair 
person 

 

1. Naresh 
Kumar 
Gattani 

1 4 6 - - - 

2. Charul 
Gattani 

1 1 - - - - 

3. Chitra 
Naraniwal 

1 2 - 7 3 4(M) 
 

4. Arpit Jain 1 - - 2 0 1 (C) 

5. Siddharth 
Jain 

1 - - 2 1 1 (M) 

 
c) Directorship in equity listed companies and Name of equity listed entities where directors of the 

Company held directorships as on 31st March 2025 (including the Company) 
 

Sl. No. Name of Director Listed Entity Category 

1. Naresh Kumar Gattani 
 

ATVO Enterprises Limited Managing director  

2.  Charul Gattani 
 

ATVO Enterprises Limited Executive Director 

3. Chitra Naraniwal 
 

ATVO Enterprises Limited Non-Executive (Independent) 
Director 

4. Arpit Jain 
 

ATVO Enterprises Limited Non-Executive (Independent) 
Director 

5. Siddharth Jain 
 

ATVO Enterprises Limited Non-Executive (Independent) 
Director 

 
 
Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se 
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Naresh Kumar Gattani is Father-in-Law of Mrs. Charul Gattani Executive director of the Company. Except 
this None of the present Directors are "Relative" of each other as defined in Section 2 (77) of Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the companies (Specification of definitions details) Rules, 2014 

 
 

d) Letters of appointment of Independent Directors & policy to familiarize 

 
The company has also formulated a policy to familiarize the Independent Directors with the company, 
their roles, rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company 
operates, business model of the company, etc., through various programmes. 
 
A. Non-Executive Directors Compensation and Disclosures 

 
Apart from payment of sitting fees, the Company does not have any pecuniary relationship or 
transactions with non-executive Directors. No remuneration was given to any of the Non-Executive 
Directors during the financial year 2024-25. 
 
 
B. Familiarization Program for Independent Directors 
 
The Company has Familiarization Program Module ("the Program") for Independent Directors ("ID") of 
the Company. As per the requirement of Regulation 25(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the company familiarizes the Independent Directors with the 
company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the 
company operates, business model of the company, etc., through this programme. 
 
 

e) Skills/expertise/ competencies of the Board of Directors 
 
The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for the effective 
functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board: 
 
Area of skills/expertise/ competencies 
 

• Financial Skills/Accounts 

• marketing strategy 

• Legal and Regulatory Compliance and Governance 

• Risk Management 

• Supply Chain 
 

These skills/competencies are broad-based, encompassing several areas of expertise/experience. Each 
Director may possess varied combinations of skills/experience within the described set of parameters, 
and it is not necessary that all Directors possess all skills/experience listed therein. 
 

• The Board confirms that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI 
Listing Regulations and are independent of the management. 

 
f) Other Disclosure 

 

• Remuneration 
 

• Paid to Directors during the year 2024-25: Nil  
 

• None of the Non-Executive Directors have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the 
Company. 
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• Recording of Minutes: The Company Secretary prepares draft minutes of the proceeding of the Board 
Meetings and circulates the same to all the members of the Board, for their comments. Thereafter 
final minutes are recorded in the Minutes Book within thirty days from the conclusion of the Meeting. 

 

Shareholding of Non-executive Directors 

 

Equity shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31st March, 2025 

Name of Director Category Number of Equity 
shares held 

Convertible 
Warrants 

Chitra Naraniwal  Independent  
 Non-Executive Director 

- NIL 

Arpit Jain  Independent  
 Non-Executive Director - NIL 

Siddharth Jain 
Independent  
 Non-Executive Director - NIL 

 
 
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
As permitted under applicable laws, the Board has delegated certain functions to its various committees that 
are established for that purpose. These committees conduct detailed reviews of the items under their purview 
before presenting them to the Board for its consideration & approval. 
  
The Board has constituted the following Committees to take informed decisions in the best interests of the 
Company in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015. 
 
A. AUDIT COMMITTEE  

 
The Company has formed audit committee pursuant to regulation 177 of companies act, 2013 & 
Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015. 
 
The term of reference of the Audit Committee is as per Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 and provisions of Companies Act 2013. 
 

Composition: The Audit Committee of the Company, comprises of 3 (three) Non-Executive 
Independent Directors as on 31st March, 2025.  
 
No. of Meetings: 07 (Seven) times during the financial year 2024-25 i.e., on 10.04.2024, 17.05.2024, 
05.08.2024, 05.09.2024, 28.10.2024, 25.11.2024 and 23.01.2025. The necessary quorum was present 
for all the meetings. The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days. 

 
Details of composition as well as attendance record of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows: 

 

Name of Members Designation No. of Meetings held  
(*eligible to attend) 

Meetings Attended 

Ms. Chitra Naraniwal 
(W.e.f. 25.05.2023) 

Chairperson 7 7 

Mr. Arpit Jain (W.e.f. 25.05.2023) Member 7 7 

Mr. Siddharth Jain (W.e.f. 
25.05.2023) 

Member 7 7 

 
 
As required under SEBI Listing regulation, all the members of the Committee are able to read and understand 
financial statements. The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and effectively supervise the 
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Company’s financial reporting process with a view to provide accurate, timely and proper disclosures and at 
the same time maintain the integrity and quality of the financial reporting.  
 
The role of Audit Committee broadly includes the following: 
 
1. The Audit Committee acts as a link between the auditors and the Board of Directors. 

 
2. Oversight of Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 

that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 
 

3. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or 
removal of Statutory Auditors and fixation of audit fees. 

 
4. Approval of Payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by them. 

 
5. Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for 

approval, with particular reference to matters required to be included in the Directors Responsibility 
Statement to be included in the Directors Report. 

 
6. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for 

approval. 
 

7. Reviewing with the management, the performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, adequacy of 
Internal Control Systems. 

 
8. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the Internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure, coverage 
and frequency of Internal Audit. 

 
9. Discussion with Internal Auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon. 

 
10. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of material nature and reporting the 
matter to the Board. 
 

11. Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

 
12. Carrying out such other work as may be specifically referred to the committee by the Board of Directors 

and /or other Committees of Directors of the Company. 
 

13. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

 

14. To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 
 

15. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee. 
 
B. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

1. Terms of reference 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI LODR 
Regulations, 2015, the Board has constituted Stakeholders' Relationship Committee to specifically look 
into the mechanism of redressal of grievances of shareholders and other security holders. 
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The terms of reference of Stakeholders Relationship Committee are in line with the provisions of 
regulation 20 read with Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations and also with the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 which broadly includes the following: - 
 
The committee considers and approves various requests for transmission, sub-division, consolidation, 
renewal, exchange, issue of new certificates in replacement of old ones, 
Dematerialization/Rematerialization of Shares, non-receipt of declared Dividend, Annual Reports and to 
redress the grievances of the investors as may be received from time to time. The Committee evaluate 
performance and service standards of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company; Provide 
guidance and make recommendations to improve investor service levels for the investors; Review of the 
various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends; 
Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company; Review of measures taken for 
effective exercise of voting rights by shareholder. 

 
The Company has formed Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, pursuant to regulation 178 of 
companies act, 2013 & Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations. 2015. 

 
Composition 
 

• The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises of 3 (three) Directors including 3 (three) Non-
Executive Independent Directors as on 31st March, 2025. The Chairman of the Committee is a Non-
Executive Independent Director. 
 

• Consequent upon the resignation Mrs. Ranjana Gattani from the position of Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director (Woman) of the Company, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been 
reconstituted by rechristened “Mr. Siddharth Jain”, Non-Executive Independent Director as a new 
Chairman/Member of the Committee w.e.f. 17th May, 2024 as per the provisions of section 178 of the 
Act and regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. 

 

• No. of Meetings: 04 (Four) times during the financial year 2024-25, the necessary quorum was 
present for all the meetings.  

 

• The Committee mainly look into the matters pertaining to Redressal of the Stakeholders' grievances 
and related matters. The Committee didn’t received any complaints from the shareholders during the 
financial year under review. 

 

• No Stakeholders Grievance remained unattended / pending for more than 15 days. There were no 
complaints pending disposal as on the 31st March, 2025. No request for dematerialization of Equity 
Shares of the Company was pending for approval as at the 31st March 2025. 
 

• During 2024-25, the Committee met four times on 05.09.2024, 28.10.2024, 25.11.2024 and 
23.01.2025. 

 
Details of composition as well as attendance record of the Committee meetings as on 31st March,   
2025 are as follows: 

 

Name of Members Designation No. of Meetings held 
(*eligible to attend) 

Meetings Attended 

Mr. Siddharth Jain Chairperson 4 4 

Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal Member 4 4 

Mr. Arpit jain Member 4 4 

 
Name, designation and address of Compliance Officer: -  
 

Name Ms. Kirti Agarwal  

Designation Company Secretary & Compliance officer 



ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

      

62 
 

Address Agarwal Sadan, Mahila Ashram Road, Near Godavari 
Hall, Bhilwara -311001 RJ IN 

 
 
 
Designated E-mail for Investors’ Grievances – vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com 
 
Status of Investor Complaints received and redressed during 2024-25 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
C. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board has duly constituted the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, with all 
members being Non-Executive Directors and Independent Director as Chairperson 
 

• The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of 3 (three) Directors including 3 (three) 
Non-Executive Independent Directors as on 31st March, 2025. The Chairman of the Committee is a 
Non-Executive Independent Director. Details of composition as well as attendance record of the 
Committee meetings as on 31st March, 2025 are as follows: 

 

Name of Members Designation No. of Meetings held 
during the year 
(*eligible to attend) 

Meetings Attended 

Mr. Arpit Jain Chairperson 5 5 

Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal Member 5 5 

Mr. Siddharth Jain Member 5 5 

 

• No. of meetings: During the year 2024-25, the Committee met 5 (Five) times on 17.05.2024, 
05.09.2024, 28.10.2024, 25.11.2024 and 23.01.2025. 
 

• The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme. 
 

• The Remuneration Committee has been constituted to recommend / review the remuneration 
package of Managing / Executive Directors / Senior Management Personnel. The Committee decides 
remuneration payable to MD and other Executive Directors based upon their performance within the 
overall ceiling fixed by Statute as well as Shareholders. 

 

• The terms of reference of the committee are as follows 

    
a) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a 

director and to recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the 
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

b)  Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of 
directors;  

c) Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;  
d) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors 
their appointment and removal.  

e)  Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of 
the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.  

Total 
Complaints 
Received 

Total 
Complaints 
Redressed 

Pending as on 
31/03/2025 

NIL NIL Nil 
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f) The remuneration policy as adopted by the company envisages the payment of remuneration 
according to qualification, experience and performance at different levels of the organization. The 
workers at the factory as well as those rendering clerical, administrative and professional services are 
suitably remunerated according to the industry norms. 

 
Risk Management Committee: As per Regulation 21 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company is not 
required to constitute Risk Management Committee for FY 2024-25. 
 
Performance evaluation criteria for independent directors: 
 
Performance Evaluation Criteria of Board members including Independent Directors as approved by the 
Board provides: 
a) Each of the director(s) are required to assign the rating on different parameters for the evaluation of 

board, independent director(s) and committees of the Board of Directors and has to submit the same 
to the Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 

b) The rating is to be assigned on a scale of five for the purpose of evaluation of performance as under: 
 

Rating Scale Scale Performance 

5 Exceptionally Good 

4 Good 

3 Satisfactory 

2 Needs Improvement 

1 Unacceptable 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall receive the Evaluation Forms in sealed cover and 
summarize the results. The Chairperson of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee may have 
discussions with individual director where clarification or interpretation is required 
 
The Chairperson of the NRC shall develop a report on the basis of evaluation rating received. The 
Committee shall review the result and submit its recommendation for the consideration of Board. 
 
The Board shall review the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and 
issue necessary directions. 
 

Remuneration of Directors 
 
As per the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company is empowered to determine the 
sitting fee payable to Independent Directors within the ceiling prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Remuneration Paid to Directors for 2024-25 
 

 

Name of Director 

 

Category 

Salaries, 
allowances 
and 
Perquisites 

 
Sitting 

fees 

 

Commission 

 

Total 

 Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani Managing Director - - - - 

 Mrs. Charul Gattani  Promoter executive 
Director 

- - - - 

 Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal Independent  
Non-Executive Director 

- 48000 - 48000 

 Mr. Siddharth Jain Independent  
Non-Executive Director 

- 36000 - 36000 

 Mr. Arpit Jain Independent  
Non-Executive Director 

- 36000 - 36000 

 

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
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During the year under review, the independent director met once on 27th March, 2025-to: 

 
i. Evaluate the performance of non -independent director and the board as the whole; 
ii. Evaluate the performance of the executive director of the company;  
iii. Evaluate the quality, quantity, and flow of information between the executive management and 

board. 

All the Independent Directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as 
mentioned under Section149 (6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. All the 
Independent Directors have included their names in Independent Director’s data bank maintained with 
the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (‘IICA’) in terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and completed the 
online proficiency test conducted by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, wherever required. It is 
hereby confirmed that in the opinion of Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified 
under the Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 2013 and they are independent of Management.  

No Independent Director has resigned during the year. 

The Independent Directors do not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the 
Company, Promoters or Management, which may affect their judgement in any manner. 

In Compliance with the Act and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations. 2015, the Independent Directors Meeting of the Company was held on 27th March,2025. 

The Independent Directors discussed and reviewed the matters specified in Regulation 25(4) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015.  

 
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 
The details of last three AGMs are mentioned hereunder: 
 

Year Day, Date & Time Venue Special resolution (s) Passed 

2023-24 Saturday,  
28th September,2024 

at 04:30 pm  

Held through Video 
Conferencing.  
Deemed Venue was Bhandari 
Plaza, 2nd Floor, Opp. Nagar 
Parishad Rajendra Marg Road, 
Bhilwara Rajasthan – 311001. 

No Special resolution passed 
during the year. 

2022-23 Thursday, 
 28th September, 
2023 at 2:30 pm 

Held through Video 
Conferencing.  
Deemed Venue was Bhandari 
Plaza, 2nd Floor, Opp. Nagar 
Parishad Rajendra Marg Road, 
Bhilwara Rajasthan – 311001. 

Special resolution passed for 
Revision in terms of payment of 
remuneration to Mrs. Ranjana 
Gattani (DIN: 00125150) Non – 
Executive Director of the 
Company. 

2021-22 Wednesday, 
 28th September, 
2022 at 2:00 pm 

Held through Video 
Conferencing.  
Deemed Venue was Bhandari 
Plaza, 2nd Floor, Opp. Nagar 
Parishad Rajendra Marg Road, 
Bhilwara Rajasthan - 311001 

No Special resolution passed 
during the year. 

 
 
 
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting  
 
One Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held in the year 2024-25.  
 
In the current financial year company has held Extra-ordinary General Meeting on 17th December, 2024.  
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The Company had passed four (4) Special resolutions at the EGM with regard to: 

• Change in name of company from “Vandana Knitwear Limited “to “ATVO Enterprises limited”,  

• Amendment of the Memorandum of Association of the Company as required by Companies Act, 2013,  

• Change (addition) in Object Clause of the Company and  

• Adoption of New Set of Articles of Association of the Company. 
 

 Passed One (1) ordinary resolution with regard to increase in authorized share capital of company from 
12,00,00,000 (Rupees Twelve Crore Only) divided into 12,00,00,000 (Twelve Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- 
each to Rs. 20,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty Crore) divided into 20,00,00,000(Twenty Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 
1/- each. 
 
No Postal Ballot was conducted during the year under review 
 

vi. DISCLOSURES  
 

• Financial Statements / Accounting treatments: In the preparation of Financial Statements, the Company 
has followed the Accounting Standards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India to the extent 
applicable.  
 

• Materially Significant Related Parties Transactions: There have been no materially significant related 
party transactions, pecuniary transactions or relationships between the Company and its Directors that 
may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company. Transactions with Related Parties are 
disclosed in Notes of Accounts to the annual financial statements for the year 2024-25. The same is self-
explanatory and need not call for any further clarification. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party 
Transactions as required under section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is attached 
with the Directors' Report. 

 

• Strictures or Penalties: During the last three years, there were no strictures or penalties imposed either by 
the SEBI or the Stock Exchange or any other Statutory Authorities for non-compliance of any matter 
related to Capital Markets. 

 

• Disclosure on Risk Management: The Board is periodically informed about the key risks and their 
minimisation procedures. Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the 
Company. 

 

• CEO Certification: As required under Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the CEO/CFO certificate 
for the financial year 2024-25 signed by Mr. Naresh Kumar Gattani, Managing Director and Mr. Archit 
Patodi, CFO, was placed before the Board of Directors of the Company and is also forms a part of this 
Annual Report. 
 

• Secretarial Audit Report: The Company has undertaken Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25 
which, inter alia, includes audit of compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made under 
the Act, Listing Regulations and applicable Regulations prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India and Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the 
Company Secretaries of India. The Secretarial Audit Report forms part of this Annual Report.  
 

• Compliance with the mandatory requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations: The Company has 
complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance as stipulated under 
the Listing Regulations. The Company has also obtained a certificate affirming the compliances from M/s 
Naresh Maheshwari & Co. (w.e.f 05.09.2024) Chartered Accountants, and the same is attached to this 
Report. The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations. 

 

• Compliance with Other Non-Mandatory Requirements: 
a. The Company follows the guidelines as recommended from time to time by Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India. One such instance is the adoption of Secretarial Standards in respect to Preparation 
and Recording of Minutes and other Statutory Records and Registers.  
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b. In respect to Audit Qualifications, the Company is making conscious efforts towards moving into a regime 
of unqualified Financial Statements. 

c. The Board has already set up a Remuneration Committee, the details whereof are furnished already in this 
Report. 
 

• Compliance with Regulation 34 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and disclosure Requirements) 
regulation,2015 

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Sub clause (10) (i) of the 
Listing Regulations, the Company has obtained a certificate from Practicing Company Secretary confirming 
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The certificate is annexed with the report 
 

• Initiatives on Prevention of Insider Trading Practices 
 In compliance with the SEBI regulation on prevention of insider trading, the Company has instituted a 
comprehensive code of conduct for its management staff. The Code lays down guidelines, which advises 
them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing with shares and cautions 
them on consequences of violations. 
The Company follows closure of trading window prior to the publication of price sensitive information. The 
Company has been informing the directors, senior management personnel and other persons covered 
under the code and advise them not to trade in Company’s securities during the closure of trading window 
period. 
 

• Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2018  

 
Details of complaints received and redressed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2018, during the Financial Year 2024-25 are as follows 
 

No. of Complaints filed during 
the Financial Year 

No. of Complaints disposed of 
during the Financial Year 

No. of Complaints pending as on 
end of the Financial Year 

Nil Nil Nil 

 

• PCS Certificate on non-disqualification of Directors 
 
M/s. R. K Jain & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries have submitted a certificate that none of the 
Directors of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
director of Companies by the SEBI/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The 
Certificate forms part of Corporate Governance Report. 
 

• Acceptance of recommendations of the Board Committees 
 

The Board has accepted all recommendations of its committees made during the Financial Year 2024-25. 
 

vii. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 

(i) The Company’s Results and other Corporate Announcements are regularly sent to the 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE), Mumbai. 

(ii) The results are also posted on the Company’s Website www.vandanaknitwear.com 
(iii) These Results are not sent individually to the Shareholders. 
(iv) All price sensitive information is immediately informed to Stock Exchanges before the same is 

communicated to general public through press releases, if any. 
(v) Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Annual Report. 

 
viii. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMARTION 

 
1.       Annual General Meeting 
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S.No. Particulars Information 

1. Annual General Meeting 30th 

2. Financial Year April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025 

 

3. Day, date and time  Monday 29th September,2025 at 3.30 

PM 

4. Venue Through Video Conferencing.  

Deemed Venue at Bhandari Plaza, 2nd 

Floor, Opp. Nagar Parishad, Rajendra 

Marg Road, Bhilwara, 311001, 

Rajasthan. 

 
1. Book Closure Date 
 
The Share Transfer Registers of the Company shall remain closed from Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 to 
Monday, 29th September, 2025 (both days inclusive). 

 
2. Listing at Stock Exchange(s) 
 
The Company’s shares are presently listed only on 
 
BSE Limited,  
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,  
Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai - 400001. 
 
3. Dividend payment date 
The Company has not recommended or paid any dividend during the financial year under review. 
 
4. Stock Code 
 
Bombay Stock Exchange: 532090 
 
5. Stock Market Data 

 
Table Showing Monthly High and Low (Prices with Volumes) at BSE: 
 

Month and 
Year 

 

Stock Prices 

High (Rs.) 
 

Low (Rs.) 
 

Volume (Nos.) 
 

Apr-24 5.09 4.04 1911737 

May-24 4.55 3.79 1284672 

Jun-24 5.48 3.65 2219620 

Jul-24 5.15 4.26 1324427 

Aug-24 6.17 4.57 1364793 

Sep-24 8 4.82 1335986 

Oct-24 7.11 4.76 1555526 

Nov-24 6.95 4.58 6769338 

Dec-24 9.99 6.94 1437985 

Jan-25 13.6 10.18 3674804 

Feb-25 11.51 8.7 2103759 

Mar-25 14.53 10.64 1399822 



ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

      

68 
 

 
6. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2025 
 

Distribution of shareholding on 31st March, 2025 
 

No. of Equity 
share held 

No of shareholder % of shareholder No. of shares % of shares 

Up to 500 4324 64.847 461456 0.4313 

501 to 1,000 634 9.5081 562401 0.5257 

1,001 to 2,000 388 5.8188 607187 0.5675 

2,001 to 3,000 168 2.5195 447463 0.4182 

3,001 to 4,000 109 1.6347 396137 0.3703 

4,001 to 5,000 154 2.3095 747297 0.6985 

5,001 to 10,000 333 4.994 2768419 2.5877 

10,001 & above 558 8.3683 100994710 94.4008 

Total 6668 100 106985070 100 

 
 

Category Wise Shareholding 
 

 Category No. of Shares % of Total Capital 

A.  Promoters Holding                                         

a. Indian Promoters 5,40,40,405 50.51 

b. Foreign Promoter                                           ------- ------ 

B. Non-Promoters Holding   

a. Foreign Institutional Investors            ------ ----- 

b.  Indian Public                                                      5,29,44,665  49.49 

Total      10,69,85,070  100.00 

 
* No Promoters of the Company were changed during the Financial Year 2024-25. 
 

7. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity  
 
As trading in shares of the Company can be done only in electronic form, it is advisable that the Shareholders 
who have shares in physical form get their shares dematerialized. As on March 31, 2025, 10,63,81,141 Equity 
shares of Re. 1/- each consisting of 99.44% of the Total Paid up Share Capital were held in dematerialized form. 
 
8. Share Transfer System 
 
99.404% of the equity shares of the Company are in electronic form. Transfer of these shares is done through 
depositories and the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents MUFG Intime India Pvt. Ltd (Formerly known as Link 
Intime India Pvt. Ltd.) 
 
The Transfer of shares is reviewed by the Share Transfer / Investor Grievances Redressal Committee of the 
Board of Directors of the Company on periodical basis.  
 
As regards transfer of shares held in physical form the transfer documents can be lodged with MUFG Intime 
India Pvt. Ltd (Formerly known as Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.), Registrar and Share Transfer Agents at the 
above-mentioned addresses. Transfer of shares in physical form is normally processed within ten to twelve 
days from the date of receipt, of the documents are complete in all respects. Certain Directors, Compliance 
officer and the Company Secretary are severally empowered to approve transfers. 
 
The Share Capital Audit Report regarding reconciliation of the total issued, listed and capital held by 
depositories in a dematerialized form with respect to the Equity Share Capital of the Company was obtained 
from the Practicing Company Secretary for each quarter during the year and submitted to the Stock Exchanges 
within the stipulated time. 
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Number of shares held in dematerialized and physical mode as on 31st March 2025. 
 

Particulars Total Shares % to Equity 

Shares in dematerialized form with 
NSDL 

74625668 69.75 

Shares in dematerialized form with 
CDSL 

31755473 29.68 

Physical 603929 0.56 

Total 106985070 100 

 
 
9.  Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or Any Convertible Instruments 
 
The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments in the past and hence 
as on March 31, 2025, the Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible 
instruments. 
 
10. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) 
 
MUFG Intime India Pvt. Ltd 
(Formerly known as Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.) 
C-101, 247 PARK, L.B.S. MARG, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400 083. 
E-mail ID: mumbai@linkintime.co.in 
Tel. No.: 022-4918 6000; Fax No.: 022-4918 6000 
Website: www.in.mpms.mufg.com 
 
11. Depository 

 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
Marathon Futurex, A-Wing, 25th floor, 
NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai-400013 
 
National Securities Depository Limited 
Trade World, A-Wing, 4th & 5th Floors, 
Kamala Mills Compound, 
Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Lower Parel, Mumbai-400013 
 
12.  Demat ISIN for NSDL and CDSL as on 31st March, 2025 

 
The ISIN number for ATVO Enterprises Limited equity shares on NSDL and CDSL is INE219M01021. 

 
13.  Registered Office: 
 

Bhandari Plaza, 2nd Floor, Opp. Nagar Parishad, Rajendra Marg Road, Bhilwara, 311001, Rajasthan. 
 
Plant Location: Not Applicable 
 

 
14.  Corporate Identification Number: 

 
THE CIN OF ATVO Enterprises Limited is L46411RJ1995PLC072122. 

 
15. Disclosure by the company and its subsidiaries of 'loans and advances in the nature of loans to 

firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount 
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During the year 2024-25, the Company had not made any Loans and Advances in the Nature of Loans 
to Firms/Companies in which Directors are interested. Hence, no such Disclosure required. 

 
16. Details of material subsidiaries of the company 
 

During the financial year ended 2024-25, the Company has no subsidiary company within the meaning 
of Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
17.  Address for communication/Correspondence: 
 
Shareholder’s correspondence should be addressed to the Company’s RTA at the address mentioned below: 
 
 
MUFG Intime India Pvt. Ltd 
(Formerly known as Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.) 
C-101, 247 PARK, L.B.S. MARG, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400 083. 
E-mail ID: mumbai@linkintime.co.in 
Tel. No.: 022-4918 6000; Fax No.: 022-4918 6000 
Website: www.vandanaknitwear.com 
 
For any further assistance, the Shareholder’s may Contact: 
 
Secretarial Department 
ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 
Bhandari Plaza, 2nd Floor,  
Opp. Nagar Parishad, Rajendra Marg Road,  
Bhilwara, 311001, Rajasthan. 
 
Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their respective 
Depository Participant. 
 
The Company has designated exclusive Email ID for redressal of Investor Grievances i.e. 
vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com  
 
 
18. Disclosure of Credit Rating 

 
 Disclosure of Credit Rating is not applicable on the company during the year under review. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:vandanaknitwearlimited2021@gmail.com
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MD/CFO Certificate 
Chairman and Managing Director and /Chief Financial Officer Certificate  

 
[Compliance Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015] 
 

 

To  
The Board of Directors 
ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 
Bhandari Plaza, 2nd Floor, 
Opp. Nagar Parishad, 
Rajendra Marg Road, 
Bhilwara-311001 
Rajasthan 
 
In pursuance to Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, we, to the best of knowledge and belief, certify that: 
 

We have reviewed Audited Financial statements (Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and all the schedules 
and notes on accounts) and the Cash Flow Statement and Directors’ Report of ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 and based on 
our knowledge, belief and information: 
 

i. These statements do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact necessary to make these statements made, in the light of the circumstances under 
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the statements made. 

 
ii. These statements and other financial information included in this annual report, present in all 

material respects, a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in Compliance with 
existing Accounting Standards and / or applicable laws and regulations. 

 
(ii) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 

are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct. 
 
(iii) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 

that we have evaluated the effectiveness of Internal Control System of the Company pertaining to 
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the 
design or operation of such Internal Controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have 
taken or propose to take to ratify these deficiencies. 

 
(iv) during the year under reference: 

 
i. there were no significant changes in internal control system over financial reporting; 

ii. there were no significant changes in accounting policies and that the same have been disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements; and;  

iii. there were no instance(s) of significant fraud involved therein, if any, of which the management 
or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity's internal control system over financial 
reporting.  
 
 

Sd/-                        Sd/- 
Naresh Kumar Gattani                             Archit Patodi  
Chairman and Managing Director                                                                                         Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 00125231                                                   
Date: 21-05-2025 
Place: Bhilwara  
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DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE OF THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT  

 
 
To 
The Members  
ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 
Bhandari Plaza, 2nd Floor, 
Opp. Nagar Parishad, 
Rajendra Marg Road, 
Bhilwara-311001 
Rajasthan 
 
This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a code of conduct for its Board members and the senior 
management personnel. 
 
I, Naresh Kumar Gattani, Chairman & Managing Director, of ATVO Enterprises Limited, do hereby confirm that 
all members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed their 
compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct as laid down in Regulation 26(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2025. 
 
  
Sd/-          
Naresh Kumar Gattani 

DIN - 00125231 
Chairman & Managing Director 
 
Date:  21-05-2025 
Place: Bhilwara  
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

In terms of Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V (E) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015) 

 
 
To,  
The Members, 
ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 
Bhandari Plaza, 2nd Floor, 
Opp. Nagar Parishad, 
Rajendra Marg Road, 
Bhilwara-311001 
Rajasthan 
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as  Vandana Knitwear Limited) (‘the Company’), CIN: L46411RJ1995PLC072122 having 
registered office at Bhandari Plaza, 2nd Floor, Opp. Nagar Parishad, Rajendra Marg Road, , Bhilwara, Rajasthan, 
311001  for the year ended on March 31, 2025, as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) pursuant to the 
Listing Agreement of the Company with Stock Exchanges. The compliance of conditions of corporate 
governance is the responsibility of the management.  
 
Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for 
ensuring compliance of the conditions of the corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the Financial Statements of the Company. In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, we hereby certify that the Company has complied with the 
conditions of Corporate Governance to the extent applicable, as stipulated in the provisions specified in 
chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchange.  
 
We further state that such compliance is neither any assurance as to future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 
 
 This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid Regulations and may not be 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 

 
Date: 30-08-2025 
Place: Bhilwara 

 

 For Naresh Maheshwari & Co,                                                               
Chartered Accountants 

 
 
                       
 

Sd/- 
Naresh Maheshwari 

Partner 
                                                   Membership No: 075773 

Peer Reviewed vide Cert. No. 020491 
  UDIN:25075773BMJBKQ9658 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

 
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 
 
 

To,  
The Members, 
ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 
Bhandari Plaza, 2nd Floor, 
Opp. Nagar Parishad, 
Rajendra Marg Road, 
Bhilwara-311001 
Rajasthan 
 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
ATVO Enterprises Limited (Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) having CIN: 
L46411RJ1995PLC072122  and having registered office Bhandari Plaza, 2nd Floor, Opp. Nagar Parishad, 
Rajendra Marg Road, Bhilwara Rajasthan 311001 India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced 
before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read 
with Schedule V Para C Sub clause 10 (i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the following Directors on the 
Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred 
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.  
 
Details of Directors:  
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Directors DIN Date of Appointment 
in the Company 

Date of cessation 
(if applicable) 

1 Naresh Kumar Gattani 00125231 29/03/2021 - 

2 Charul Gattani 09796702 25/05/2023 - 

3 Chitra Naraniwal 09077116 25/05/2023 - 

4 Arpit Jain 10166012 25/05/2023 - 

5 Siddharth Jain 10164421 25/05/2023 - 

6 Ranjana Gattani 00125150 29/03/2021 17/05/2024 

 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of 
the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this based on our verification. 
This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For R.K. Jain & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

 
Date:  30-08-2025 
Place: Bhilwara        _______________ 

CS R K Jain 
Proprietor 

        F.C.S.: 4584 C.P.: 5866  
        UDIN: F004584G001121282 

Peer Review No: 1361/2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To, 

The Members, 

ATVO ENTERPRISES LIMITED 

 

Report on the Financial Statements for the F.Y. 2024-25 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Atvo Enterprises 

Limited which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, and the 

standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), standalone 

Cash Flow Statement and the standalone statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended, and 

notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information. (Here in after referred to as “Standalone Ind AS 

financial Statement”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view inconformity with 

the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

March 31, 2025, the profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash 

flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further 

described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 

Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 

in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 
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the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

There are no Key Audit Matters Reportable as per SA 701 issued by ICAI. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the 

other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s 

annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read 

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in 

section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements 

that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss, other comprehensive income, 

changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act and the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 

the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Director are 

responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 

unless management and Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 



ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

      

77 
 

process. 

 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 

statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 

the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 

adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by management 

and Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the going 

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

standalone financial statements, or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 

concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
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deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

• We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

• From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the 

current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 

report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 

the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A”, a 

statement on the matter specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required under provisions of section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we report that: 

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief where necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as appears from our examination of those books; 

c. The standalone Balance Sheet and the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss ( including Other 

Comprehensive Income), the standalone Statement of Cash Flows and the standalone Statement 

of Changes of Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 

under section 133 of the Act. 

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, 

from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 

report in “Annexure B”. 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 

provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

h. With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us: 
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i. The Company does not have any pending litigation as at March 31, 2025 on its 

financial position in its financial statements, except as provided in Annexure “A”. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term and derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 

March 31, 2025. 

 

For: Naresh Maheshwari & Co.                                                                                   

Chartered Accountants  

F.REG. NO. 007113C 

 

                      

 (Naresh Maheshwari) 

   Partner 

  M.NO. - 075773  

  

Place: Bhilwara   

Date:  21.05.2025 

UDIN: 25075773BMJBKC3521 
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“ANNEXURE 1” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books and records 

examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: - 

1) a) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all the fixed 

assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of two years. In our opinion, the periodicity of 

physical verification is a reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. 

Pursuant to the program a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the management, 

during the year and no material discrepancies have been notice on such verification. 

b) According to the information and explanations received by us, and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties as disclosed in the Note E to the 

financial statement of the Company. 

2) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the management at reasonable intervals as 

required under clause 3(ii). 

3) The Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to any companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 

2013. Hence the reporting requirement under clause (iii) of the said order does not arise. 

4) Based on our scrutiny of the Company’s records and according to the information and explanations 

received by us from the management, we are of the opinion that in respect of loans and guarantees 

given, investments made, and securities purchased by the company, the provisions of section 185 and 

186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. 

5) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 

any deposits from the public and hence the reporting requirement under clause (v) of the said order does 

not arise. 

6) Being a trading company having turnover below prescribe limit, the provisions of section 148(1) of the 

Act with regard to the maintenance of cost records are not applicable to the Company. 

7) a) Based on our scrutiny of the Company’s Book of Account and other records and according to the 

information and explanations received by us from the management, we are of the opinion that the 

company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues applicable to it 

and no undisputed amounts payable in respect of any statutory dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 

2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

b) According to the records of the company and the information and explanations received by us from 

the management, there are no disputed statutory dues outstanding in the name of the company. 

8) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of 

the opinion, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank, 

Government or dues to debenture holders. 

9) According to the records of the company, the company has neither raised any moneys by way of Initial 

Public Offer or Further Public Offer (including debt instrument) nor has the company raised any term 

loans during the Financial Year start from 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025. Hence, in our opinion the reporting 

requirement under clause (ix) of the said order does not arise. 

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to 

us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed 

or reported during the course of our audit, that causes the financial statements to be materially misstated. 

11) According to the records of the company, Managerial remuneration has been paid or provided during the 

year under audit is within the limit of provision of Companies Act, 2013. 
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12) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations provided by the 

management, we are of the opinion that the company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, in our opinion the 

reporting requirement under clause (xii) of the said order does not arise. 

13) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 

of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the 

Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as 

required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14) Based on our scrutiny of the Company’s Book of Account and other records and according to the 

information and explanations received by us from the management, we are of the opinion that the 

company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 

convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence, the reporting requirement under clause 

(xiv) of the said order does not arise. 

15) Based on our scrutiny of the Company’s Book of Account and other records and according to the 

information and explanations received by us from the management, we are of the opinion that the 

company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with 

him. Hence, the reporting requirement under clause (xv) of the said order does not arise. 

 

For: Naresh Maheshwari & Co.                                                                                   

Chartered Accountants  

F.REG. NO. 007113C 

 

 

                      

 (Naresh Maheshwari) 

   Partner 

  M.NO. - 075773  

  

Place: Bhilwara   

Date  :  21.05.2025 

UDIN: 25075773BMJBKC3521 
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“ANNEXURE 2” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph (2)g under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our Independent 

Auditor’s Report of even date, to the members of the Company on the Financial statements for the year ended 

31st March, 2025. 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as of Atvo Enterprises 

Limited as on 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statement of the Company for the 

year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls. These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 

required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 

deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 

of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
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unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

31st March 2025. 

 

For: Naresh Maheshwari & Co.                                                                                   

Chartered Accountants  

F.REG.NO. 007113C 

 

                      

 (Naresh Maheshwari) 

  Partner 

  M.NO. - 075773  

  

Place: Bhilwara   

Date   :  21.05.2025 

UDIN: 25075773BMJBKC3521 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2025 

PARTICULARS NOTES 
(Amount In 
Rs. Lacs) 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS    

Share Capital 1 1,069.85 1,069.85 
Reserves & Surplus 2 83.62 72.22 
Share Application Money    

  1,153.47 1,142.07 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    

Long-Term Borrowings 3 7.50 77.66 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 4 (0.15) (0.15) 
Other Long-Term Liabilities  - - 
  7.35 77.51 

CURRENT LIABILITIES    

Short Term Borrowings 5 - - 
Trade Payable 6   

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - 

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises- 

 
- 15.31 

Other Current Liabilities 7 3.49 4.05 
Short Term Provision 8 3.83 3.58 

  7.32 22.94 
TOTAL  1,168.14 1,242.52 

 

 ASSETS 

   

NON CURRENT ASSETS    

Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets    

Property, Plant & Equipment 9 3.79 4.57 
Intangible Assets  - - 
Capital Work in Progress (incl. Preop. Expenses)  - - 

Non-Current Investments 10 - - 
Other Non Current Asset 11 0.10 0.10 
Long Term Loan & advances 12 - - 
  3.89 4.67 

CURRENT ASSETS    

Current Investments  - - 
Inventories 13 5.71 14.38 
Trade Recievable 14 36.60 45.06 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 11.79 8.42 
Short-term loans & advances 16 1,103.08 1,162.70 
Other Current Assets 17 7.09 7.28 

  1,164.25 1,237.85 
TOTAL  1,168.14 1,242.52 

As Per Our Audit Report of Even 

Date For: Naresh Maheshwari & 

Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
F. Reg. No. 007113C 
 

 

Naresh 

Maheshwari 

M.No. 075773 

 

Place: 
Bhilwara 

Date: 
21.05.2025 
UDIN- 25075773BMJBKC3521 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 
ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

 

 

 

Charul Gattani                           Naresh Kumar Gattani  

[Director]                           [ Chairman and Managing Director] 
(DIN  09796702)                                  (DIN 00125231) 
 
 
Archit Patodi                                       KIRTI AGARWAL 
[CFO]                                             [Company Secretary &         
                                                         Compliance Officer] 
[PAN: AQUPP8239Q]                     [PAN : BNGPA1947N] 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS A/C FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2025 

PARTICULARS NOTES 
 (Amount In Rs. Lacs) 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

REVENUE 
I) Revenue From Operations 
II) Other Income 

 

18 
19 

 

444.80 
72.34 

 

371.47 
68.47 

TOTAL INCOME  517.14 439.95 

 

EXPENSES 
Cost of materials consumed 

Purchase of Stock in trade 

Changes in inventories 

Manufacturing expenses 

Employee Benefit expenses 

Finance Cost 

Depreciation/Amortisation expenses 

Other expenses 

 

 

20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
9 

26 

 

 

- 
428.20 

8.68 
- 

34.15 

1.72 
0.78 

28.38 

 

 

- 
342.49 

16.90 
- 

32.60 

4.86 
0.75 

28.65 

IV) TOTAL EXPENSES  501.91 426.26 

V) Profit before exceptional and extraordinary    

items (III - IV) 15.23 13.68 
VI) Exceptional Items/Extraordinary items. - - 
VII) Profit before Tax (PBT) (V- VI) 15.23 13.68 

VIII) Tax expenses of continuing operations 
  

Current Tax 3.83 3.58 
MAT Credit Recognised - - 
Deferred Tax - (0.02) 

 3.83 3.56 

IX) Profit / (loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-VIII) 11.40 10.12 
X) Profit / (loss) for the period from discontinuing operations.  - - 

XI) Profit / (loss) for the period (Profit After Tax ) (IX+X) 11.40 10.12 

Earning Per Share 0.01 0.01 

 

 

As Per Our Audit Report Of Even 

Date For: Naresh Maheshwari & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
F. Reg. No. 007113C 
 

 

Naresh 

Maheshwari 

M.No. 075773 

 

Place: Bhilwara 

Date: 
21.05.2025 
UDIN- 25075773BMJBKC3521 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 
ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

 

 

Charul Gattani  

[Director] 

(DIN  09796702) 

 

Naresh Kumar Gattani  

[Managing Director] 
(DIN 00125231) 
 
 
Archit Patodi 
[CFO] 
[PAN: AQUPP8239Q] 
 
 
KIRTI AGARWAL 
[Company Secretary & Compliance Officer] 
[PAN: BNGPA1947N] 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025 
CIN NO. L46411RJ1995PLC0721222 

(Amount In Rs. Lacs) 
 Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

(A) CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

  

 Net Profit Before Tax 15.23 13.68 
 Adjustments for:-   

 Depreciation 0.78 0.75 
 Interest Expenditure 1.72 4.86 
 Interest Income (72.34) (68.47) 
 Preliminary Expenses W/off - - 
 Foreign Exchange Gain Loss - - 
 Adjustments for :- - - 
 Inventories 8.68 16.90 
 Trade Receivable 8.46 (30.51) 
 Loans and Advances 59.63 45.34 
 Other Current Assets 0.19 1.34 
 Current liabilities (15.88) (9.51) 
 Less : Taxes Paid (Net of 

refund) 
(3.58) (4.61) 

 Add : Extra ordinary Income / 
(Loss) 

- - 

 Cash Generated from 
Operations (A) 

2.90 (30.23) 

(B) CASH FLOW FROM 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

  

 Purchase of Fixed Assets - (0.52) 
 Increase in Capital W.I.P. - - 
 Sale of Fixed Assets - - 
 Interest Received 72.34 68.47 
 Non current Assets - - 
 Non current Investment/ 

Preliminary addition 
- - 

 Net Cash Used in Investing 
Activities (B) 

72.34 67.96 

(C) CASH FLOW FROM 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

  

 Net Proceeds from long term 
borrowing 

(70.16) (85.57) 

 Increase in Long term 
Liabilities 

  

 Increase in bank borrowing 
for Working Capital 

- - 

 increase in share 
capital/application 
money/Security Premium 

  

 Subsidy Received   

 Interest Paid (1.72) (4.86) 
 Net Cash Used in Financing 

Activities (C) 
(71.88) (90.43) 

(D) Net Increase / (Decrease) in 

Cash & Cash Equivalent (A-
B+C) 

3.36 (52.70) 

 Closing Balance of Cash & 
Cash Equivalent 

11.79 8.42 

 Opening Balance of Cash & 
Cash Equivalent 

8.42 61.12 



ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

      

87 
 

 

 

As Per Our Audit Report Of Even 

Date For: Naresh Maheshwari & 

Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
F. Reg. No. 007113C 
 

 

Naresh 

Maheshwari 

M.No. 
075773 

 

Place: 
Bhilwara 

Date: 
21.05.2025 

UDIN- 25075773BMJBKC3521 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 
ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

 

 

Charul Gattani  

[Director] 

(DIN  09796702) 

 

Naresh Kumar Gattani  

[Managing Director] 
(DIN No. 00125231) 
 
 
Archit Patodi 
[CFO] 
[PAN: AQUPP8239Q] 
 
 
KIRTI AGARWAL 
[Company Secretary & Compliance Officer] 
[PAN: BNGPA1947N] 
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  (Amount In Rs. 
Lacs) 

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

NOTE 1 - SHARE CAPITAL   

Authorised Share Capital   

12,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 1/-each 1,200.00 1,200.00 

(12,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 1/-each in previous year)   

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital 
  

10,69,85,070 Equity shares of Rs. 1/-each 1,069.85 1,069.85 

(10,69,85,070 Equity shares of Rs. 1/-each in previous year)   

 1,069.85 1,069.85 

 

(Amount In Rs. Lacs) 
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

NOTE 2 - RESERVE & SURPLUS   

Securities Premium Reserve   

Balance as per last financial statements - - 
Addition during the year - - 

Closing Balance - - 

 

Profit & Loss a/c 

  

Balance as per last financial statements 72.22 62.09 

Profit for the year 11.40 10.12 

 83.62 72.22 

Total Reserve and Surplus 83.62 72.22 
 

(Amount In Rs. Lacs) 

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

NOTE 3 - LONG TERM BORROWINGS 
A) Secured Term Loans from Banks and FI's 

Term Loan From Bank 

 

 

- 

 

 

- 

Net Amount (A) - - 

 

B) Unsecured Loans 

  

From Directors, Promoters & Related Parties - 28.26 

From Intercorporates 7.50 49.40 

Net Amount (B) 7.50 77.66 
   

Total Amount (A + B) 7.50 77.66 
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(Amount In Rs. Lacs) 

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

NOTE 4 - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)   

Deferred Tax Liability/ (Assets) (Opening) (0.15) (0.13) 
Add: Deferred tax liability/(Assets) of current year - (0.02) 
Deferred Tax Liability/ (Assets) (Closing) (0.15) (0.15) 

 

NOTE 5 - SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 

  

A) FROM BANKS   

(SECURED)   

CC limit from Bank - - 
Current Maturities of long term debts - - 

 - - 

[Secured by hypothecation by way of Ist charge of stock in trade/receivable, Ist charge of fixed assets and personally 

guaranteed by the directors] 

NOTE 6 - TRADE PAYABLE   

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
(A) 

enterprises 
- - 

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro   

enterprises and small enterprises-   

For Raw materials - 15.31 
For Expenses - - 
TOTAL (B) - 15.31 
GRAND TOTAL
 (
A+B) 

- 15.31 

*The balance outstanding with sundry creditors either debit or credit are subject to confirmation and reconciliation 

 

Ageing Schedule of Trade Payable 
  

Other than MSME   

Less than 1 year- Undisputed - 15.31 
1-2 years -Undisputed - - 
2-3 years -Undisputed - - 
More than 3 Years - Disputed - - 
Total - 15.31 

 

Note :- The Government of India has promulgated an act namely “The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development 

Act 2006” which comes into force with effect from October,2 2006. As per The Act, the Company is required to identify 

the Micro & Small Enterprises & Pay them interest on overdue beyond the specified period irrespective of the terms 

agreed with the enterprises. The Company has initiated the process of identification of such suppliers. In view of number 

of supplier & no receipt of critical inputs & response from several such potential parties, the liability of interest cannot be 

reliable estimates nor can required disclosure be made. Accounting in this regard will be carried out after process is 

complete and reliable estimate can be made. Since the Company is regular in making payments to all suppliers, the 

management does not anticipate any significant interest liability. 

NOTE 7 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
  

Outstanding Liability 2.49 1.30 
TDS Payable 1.00 2.61 
GST Payable - 0.15 

 3.49 4.05 

 

NOTE 8 - SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 
  

- 

Provision for Income Tax 3.83 3.58 

 

 

 

 

3.83 3.58 
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NOTE 10 - NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS 
  

Preliminary Expenses to the extend not written off - - 
Incurred during the year - - 
Total - - 

 - - 
Less: Written off during the year - - 

 - - 

 

NOTE 11 - Other Non Current Assets 
  

Security Deposits with PrabhudasLilladher Pvt Ltd 0.10 0.10 
 0.10 0.10 

 

NOTE 12 - LONG TERM LOAN AND ADVANCES 
  

- 

Inter corporate Loan - - 
Loan To Other - - 

 - - 

The balance outstanding of loan and advances either debit or credit are subject to confirmation and reconciliation 

 

NOTE 13 - INVENTORIES 
(As taken, valued & certified by the management) 
Finish Fabrics 

 

 

 
5.71 

 

 

 
14.38 

5.71 14.38 

A. All the above inventories have been valued at Cost or Net realisable value whichever is lower.  

B. Finished Goods includes Stock in Trade.   

NOTE 14 - TRADE RECEIVABLES 
 

- 

Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered good 36.60 45.06 

Disputed Trade Receivables – considered good - - 

Balance with Related Parties - - 

36.60 45.06 

Ageing Schedule of Trade receiavables   

 Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered good 
  

Less than 6 months 36.60 45.06 
6 months - 1 year - - 
1-2 years - - 
2-3 years - - 
More than 3 years - - 
Total 36.60 45.06 

 

Disputed Trade Receivables – considered Good 
  

More than 3 years - - 

TOTAL 36.60 45.06 

   

The balance outstanding with sundry debtors either debit or credit are subject to confirmation and reconciliation 

 

NOTE 15 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

  

Cash in Hand 2.17 1.99 
Balance with Bank 9.62 6.43 

 11.79 8.42 

   

NOTE 16 - SHORT TERM LOAN AND ADVANCES   

(Unsecured, considered Good unless otherwise stated)   

Advances Recoverable in Cash or Kind or for value to be received 1,103.08 1,162.70 
 

 
1,103.08 1,162.70 
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NOTE 17 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
  

Advance Income Tax/TDS ( FY 24-25) 5.81 - 
Advance Income Tax/TDS ( FY 23-24) - 6.14 
GST Input Credit 1.28 1.14 

 7.09 7.28 

 

NOTE 18 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS    
                                     

-    

Sale from product                             
444.80  

                             
371.47  

                              
444.80  

                             
371.47  

Rebates, claims and discount etc on sales are accounted for and being provided for as and when settled with the parties as 
per consistent policy adopted by the Company every year 

       
NOTE 19 - OTHER INCOME      

Interest Received                               
72.34  

                               
68.47  

                                
72.34  

                               
68.47  

       
       
NOTE 20 - COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED      

Yarn                                     
-    

                                     
-    

Opening Stock                                     
-    

                                     
-    

Add: Purchases                                     
-    

                                     
-    

       

Less: Closing Stock                                     
-    

                                     
-    

       

                                      
-    

                                     
-    

Rebates, claims and discount etc on Purchase are accounted for and being provided for as and when settled with the 
parties as per consistent policy adopted by the Company every year. 

 
NOTE 21 - PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE       

Finish Fabric Purchase                             
428.20  

                             
342.49  

 

        

                              
428.20  

                             
342.49  

 

        

The above purahase also comprises of Fabric which has been further processed, graded & 
piece-packed for selling. 

     

        

        

NOTE 22 - CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS , WIP    
                                     

-    
 

Opening Stock       

Finish Fabric                               
14.38  

                               
31.29  

 

                                
14.38  

                               
31.29  

 

Less : Closing Stock       

Finish Fabric                                 
5.71  

                               
14.38  

 

                                  
5.71  

                               
14.38  
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8.68  

                               
16.90  

 

        

NOTE 23 - MANUFACTURING EXPENSES       

Other Manufacturing Expenses                                     
-    

                                     
-    

 

                                      
-    

                                     
-    

 

        

NOTE 24 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES    
                                     

-    
 

Salary                                
34.15  

                               
32.60  

 

                                
34.15  

                               
32.60  

 

        

NOTE 25 - FINANCE COSTS       

Bank Charges                                     
-    

                                     
-    

 

Interest to others                                 
1.72  

                                 
4.86  

 

                                  
1.72  

                                 
4.86  

 

        

NOTE 26 - OTHER EXPENSES       

A) ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES       

BSE Charges                                 
3.25  

                                 
3.84  

 

Office Expenses                                 
2.72  

                                 
0.70  

 

Postage & Telegram                                 
0.10  

                                 
0.27  

 

Professional Fees                                 
9.56  

                               
13.32  

 

Rent                                 
0.54  

                                 
0.60  

 

RTA Fees and Expense                                 
1.67  

                                 
0.79  

 

Printing and Stationery                                 
0.37  

                                 
0.06  

 

Audit Fees                                 
0.40  

                                 
0.25  

 

Software Expenses                                 
0.03  

                                 
0.14  

 

CDSL Charges                                 
0.31  

                                 
1.27  

 

NSDL Charges                                     
-    

                                 
0.53  

 

                                
18.95  

                               
21.76  

 

        

B) SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES       

Commission & Brokerage Exp.                                 
7.56  

                                 
6.26  

 

Grading Expenses                                 
1.04  

                                 
0.30  

 

Packing Expenses                                 
0.33  

                                 
0.27  

 

Freight & cartage                                 
0.51  

                                 
0.07  

 

                                                                    



ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

      

93 
 

9.43  6.89  

        

                                
28.38  

                               
28.65  

 

 

 

As Per Our Audit Report of Even Date 

For: Naresh Maheshwari & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
F. Reg. No. 007113C 
 

 

Naresh 

Maheshwari 

M.No. 075773 

 

Place: Bhilwara 

Date: 21.05.2025 

UDIN- 25075773BMJBKC3521 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 
ATVO Enterprises Limited 
(Formerly known as Vandana Knitwear Limited) 

 

 

Charul Gattani  

[Director] 

(DIN 09796702) 

 

Naresh Kumar Gattani  

[Managing Director] 
(DIN 00125231) 
 
 
Archit Patodi 
[CFO] 
[PAN: AQUPP8239Q] 
 
 
KIRTI AGARWAL 
[Company Secretary & Compliance Officer] 
[PAN: BNGPA1947N] 
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Note – 1 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
a) The financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention of the 

basis of “Accrual Concept” and in accordance with generally accepted accounting and 
principles and the accounting standards referred under the companies Act 2013 as adopted 
consistently by the company. 

b) The Company generally follows mercantile system of accounting recognizes significant items 

of income and expenditure on accrual basis. The claims rate difference, Discounts interest 
on Debtors and creditors, gratuity & leave enchantment is unascertainable and accounted 
for as and when settled. 

 

2. FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 

3.  
a) Fixed assets are stated at cost at acquisition including freight, excise local taxes and 

incidental expenses less accumulated depreciation. 
b) Depreciation on Fixed Assets i.e. provided on straight-line method at the rate and in 

manner prescribed in schedule XIV to companies Act, 2013 except in case of Looms under 

the group Plant & Machinery the life has been taken as 20 years instead of 15 years as 

opined and decided by the management of the company. 

c) Depreciation on addition to assets or on sale/discernment assets, is calculated pro-rate 
from the date of such addition or up to the of such sale/discernment, as the case may be; 

d) Expenditure incidental to the expansion are accounted for in accordance with the conduce 
note on “Treatment of expenditure during construction period” issued by the Institute of 
the Chartered Accountants of India. The said expenditure is allocated to fixed assets in the 
year of commencement of the commercial production. 

 

4. INVENTORY 
 

     Inventories valuation has been done on following basis. 
   A. Raw Material            At Cost  
            B. Work in Progress           At Estimated Cost 
    C. Finish Goods       At Cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.  
  D. Store & Spares            At Cost 

E. Packing Material              At Cost 
 

5. INVESTMENT  
Investments are stated at cost if any. 

 

6. TAXATION 
Provision for current tax has been made on the basis income for the current accounting year 
as per the provision of Income tax Act, 1961. 
 
The deferred tax for timing difference between the book and tax profits for the year is 
account for using the tax rates and laws that have been substantially enacted as of the 
Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax liabilities arising from timing differences are recognized 
to the extent there is reasonable certainty that these would be realized in future. 

 

7. REVENUE RECOGNISTION  
 
Income and expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis except certain items like 
interest, rebate, discounts and claims on sales and insurance claims, etc where there is no 
reasonable certainty regarding the amount and or its collectability/ recognition. 
 

8. MISC. EXPENDITURE - 
Preliminary expenses have been written of in 5 years. 
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9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
 
a) The liabilities in respect of gratuity has been not accounted as no one of the employees 
has completed qualified period of services to be entitled for gratuity as per policy of the 
company. The gratuity has been provided as and when paid. 
b) Contribution to provided fund and superannuating scheme accruing during each year as 
per the schemes are charges to profit and loss account. 
 

10. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
As explained by the Company that there is no contingent liability. 
 

11. TREATMENT OF EXPENDITURE DURING CONSTRUCTION PERIOD 
 

a) Pre-Operative expenses incurred on the new project/expansions are being determined 
separately and capitalized on the fixed assets acquired. 

b) Expenses incurred for installation, completion of construction and combining of plant 
capitalized during the year. 

 

12. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 
 
Factors giving rise to any indication of any impairment of the carrying amount of the 
company’s assets are appraised at each balance sheet date to determined and 
provide/revert an impairment loss following the Accounting Standard AS-28 for impairment 
of assets. No impairment loss/ profit have been recognized during this year. 
 

13. TRANSACTION IN FOREIGN CURRENCY ITEMS 
 
Foreign currency transaction in respect of fixed asset are restated at the exchange rate 
prevailing in the market at the end and the increase / decrease arising out of it is adjusted 
to the P&L account as per principles of Revised AS – 11 issued by ICAI. Foreign currency 
debtors are readjusted at the Balance Sheet date as per Revised AS – 11 issued by ICAI.  
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14. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS   
 

a) Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Lac rupees. 
b) Figure or the previous years have been regrouped, rearrange and reclassified 

wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with those for the 
current year. 

c) The Balances of sundry Debtors, creditors, unsecured loans and advances are 
subject to confirmation & reconciliation if any; 

d) Payment of Auditors Remuneration of Rs. 40000/- includes Tax Audit fees and 
Statutory audit fees. 

e) The Company has no employee drawing Rs. 500,000/- or more per month if 
employed for part of the year or Rs. 60,00,000/- or  

f) In the opinion of the management and to the best of their belief, the value on 
realization of loan and advances and other current assets during the ordinary course 
of business will not be less than the amount stated in the Balance-Sheet and 
provision for all known liabilities has been made. 

g) Company has not received copies of the Memorandum filled with concerned 
authority by entities falling under the MSMED Act 2006. Company is unable to 
identify units as well as furnished details required under the said Act. 

 
As Per Our Audit Report of Even Date  

For: Naresh Maheshwari & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

F. Reg. No. 007113C 
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Date: 21.05.2025 
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[CFO] 
[PAN: AQUPP8239Q] 
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